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Compliance Statement
FY 2013-14
Hon Kim Hames MB, BS, JP, MLA
Minister for Health

In accordance with the Financial Management Act (2006 §63), please find, for your
information and presentation to Parliament, the 2013-2014 Animal Resources Au-
thority's Annual Report.

The Annual Report has been prepared according to the Financial Management Act
(2006) and the Public Sector Management Act (1994).

Relevant written law impacting the Animal Resources Authority was followed.
-7^ / /

b,4/
f

\\.

^ Tate 7^

L Chalmers

Animal Resources Authority Chairman Animal Resources Authority Member
August 13,2014 August 13,2014

Contacts:

Postal Electronic

PO Box 1180 Internet: www.arc.wa.aov.au

Canning Vale E.mail: info(5>arc.wa.gov.au
WA 6970 Telephone: +61 (0)8 9332 5033

Fax:+61 (0)893102939
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Agency Overview 
Executive Summary 

Since 1981 the Animal Resources Authority (ARA) has supplied world-class, world-
vendor quality, microbiologically and genetically defined specific pathogen free (SPF) 
laboratory animals for research, teaching and testing throughout Australia. Bio-
medical research is the major use for animals supplied by the ARA, and through the 
Authority’s supply of quality animals it supports significant research advances. !
The not-for-profit ARA remains self-funding from operations and provides affordable 
laboratory rodents and specialized services to the biomedical sector. !
This year was an educational year for the Animal Resources Centre (ARC), as we 
move towards increasing process and procedural efficiencies while ensuring product 
quality and regulatory compliance. FY 2013-14 sales revenue was up 4.6%. As FY 
2013-14 closed, a signed Lease Proposal paves the way for a lease with Murdoch 
University (MU). This occurred through the concerted efforts of the Hon. Dr. Kim 
Hames, Minister of Health; Prof. Richard Higgott, Murdoch University Vice Chancel-
lor; and Mr. Tony Tate, ARA Board Chair. The new CEO had one full year to better 
understand the ARA’s needs, challenges, and those of the ARA’s customers. The 
2013-14 revenue increase resulted from a more moderate price increase in January 
2014 (vs. January 2013) and higher animal sales. Although the loss was larger than 
budgeted, reverse accruals, including the MU lease, will bring the loss closer to the 
budgeted amount. Significant strides were made to reduce expenses, largely these 
included quality control testing and utilities; serendipitously, there was a significant 
salary savings. A better operational understanding will permit the ARC move forward 
in FY 2014-15 by maximizing returns on planned investments. !
Interstate, private, and overseas sales provided 85.2% of revenue and 70.7% of the 
animal sales numbers; overall these markets saw revenue (6.7%) and animal num-
ber (5.3%) growth. !
The ARA underwent our standard, annual internal, OAG, and ISO 9001 audits. In 
addition the ARC underwent an energy audit and an External Triennial Review (ETR) 
of the ARC’s Animal Ethics Committee (AEC).  !
The strong and exceptional customer service and staff dedication is the cornerstone 
of the ARA’s reputation as a reliable, world class quality animal supplier in a difficult 
scientific funding environment.  !

Operational Structure 
Enabling Legislation 
The ARA was established as a Statutory Authority under the Animal Resources Act 
(1981). The Act, proclaimed on June 23, 1982, was witnessed in the Government 
Gazette of Western Australia on July 2, 1982.  !
Responsible Minister 
The Hon. Kim Hames; MB, BS, JP, MLA, Minister for Health (MOH). 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Organizational Structure 
Mission 
Provide and acquire high quality SPF laboratory animals and associated research 
support services for institutions using animals in research, teaching, and/or testing. !
Organizational Chart 

The Board vests responsibility for all Authority operations to the Chief Executive Offi-
cer. The ARA, under the PSGOGA Award, employs ARC employees.  !
The Animal Resources Authority Board 
The Governor appoints an eight-member ARA Board; each Board member serves a 
three-year term. The Minister of Health (MOH) nominates four members, the Univer-
sity of Western Australia’s (UWA) governing authority nominates two members, and 
MU and Curtin University of Technology governing authorities each nominate one. ! !
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2013-2014 Animal Resources Authority Board 

!
Senior Officers 

!
Administered Legislation 

The MOH administers Animal Resources Authority Act (1981).  !
Other Key Legislation Impacting the Authority’s Activities 

The ARA complies with the following relevant written laws: 
• Auditor General Act (2006);  
• Contaminated Sites Act (2003);  
• Disability Services Act (1993); 
• Equal Opportunity Act (1984);  
• Financial Management Act (2006); 
• Freedom of Information Act (1992);  
• Industrial Relations Act (1979);  
• Minimum Conditions of Employment 

Act (1993);  
• Legal Deposit Act (2012); 

• Occupational Safety and Health Act 
(1984);  

• Public Sector Management Act 
(1994); 

• Salaries and Allowances Act (1975); 
• State Records Act (2000);  
• State Supply Commission Act 

(1991); and 
• Animal Welfare Act (2002). 

!

Name Board-member Affiliation

Mr. Anthony Tate (Chair)
Former Director,  

Research and Development,  
Curtin University of Technology

Dr. Campbell Thomson (Deputy Chair) Director of Research Services,  
The University of Western Australia

Mrs. Leslie Chalmers Director, Productive Edge

Professor Jennet Harvey
Professor, School of Pathology and 

Laboratory Medicine,  
The University of Western Australia 

Professor David Morrison Deputy Vice Chancellor for Research  
Murdoch University

Professor Elizabeth Rakorzy
Professor and Research Director,  

Lions Eye Institute,  
The University of Western Australia

Mr. Michael Robins Department of Health, 
Health Infrastructure Unit

Mr. Charlie Thorn Director, Research and Development,  
Curtin University

Name Board-member Affiliation

Dr. Patrick Sharp Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Jurgen Krause Operations Director
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In the ARA's finance administration, we complied with the Financial Management Act 
(2006) requirements and other relevant written law, and exercised controls providing 
reasonable assurance that the receipt and expenditure of money, public property ac-
quisition and disposal, and incurring liabilities met the various legislative provisions.  !
As of the date signed, we are unaware of any circumstances rendering this state-
ment’s particulars misleading or inaccurate.  !

Performance Management Framework 
Government Goals 
By providing valuable, defined animal models for research, teaching, and/or testing, 
the ARA supports improved health outcomes consistent with the Government Goal:  !

‘Results Based Service Delivery—Greater focus on achieving results in key 
service delivery areas for the benefit of all Western Australians’ !

All plastics, cardboard, and recyclable packaging materials are recycled. All animal 
bedding is composted. The facility is converting its fluorescent lighting to energy effi-
cient, mercury-free, LED lighting. This is consistent with the Government Goal: !

‘Social and Environmental Responsibility—Ensuring that the economic activity 
is managed in a socially and environmentally responsible manner of the long-
term benefit of the State.’ !

Changes to Outcome Based Management Framework 
There were no significant Outcome Based Management Framework changes; how-
ever, Key Effectiveness and Efficiency Indicators were reviewed in 2013-14. Please 
refer to this report’s Key Performance Indicators (KPI) section for more details. !
Shared Responsibilities with Other Agencies 
The ARA did not share any responsibilities with other agencies in 2013-14. !

Agency Performance 
FY 2013-14 Highlights 
• Full animal health testing implementation with molecular testing methodologies 
• New domestic shipping container design with fewer animal delivery problems  
• International shipping container development 
• One trainees completed the Animal Technology Certificate III 
• 7 employees participated in the Frontline Management training program 
• Initial stages of disaster planning 
• Initial review of practices and procedures to increase operational efficiency 
• Initial vendor review for a given expense’s price and quality (e.g., value)  !
Overview 
As Australia’s major SPF laboratory mouse and rat biomedical research supplier, the 
ARA also exported these valuable, high quality, genetically defined animals to nine 
countries during 2013-14. The ARC’s Production arm maintains approximately 40 
SPF rat and mouse lines, and the ARC’s Custom Strains arm maintains ~100 genet-
ically modified lines; the latter validates our expertise, abilities, and customer service. 
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The ARC’s services also include cryopreservation and quarantine. The ARA contin-
ues to fulfill its function with no ongoing animal supply shortages.  !
The opportunistic bacterium, Klebsiella oxytoca, was identified in ARC mice previ-
ously; however, bacteriology gave inconsistent results. The K. oxytoca source was 
most likely a vendor.  A PCR-based test became available in November 2013 and 
has provided consistent results vs. bacteriology. This common mouse agent is 
prevalent in mouse colonies across Australia and worldwide. Work practices have 
been implemented to isolate the organism. With the molecular test, we are in the ini-
tial stages of rederiving impacted lines. No clinical signs of infection are evident and 
the bacterium is commensal and not considered a general biomedical research im-
pediment. The agent is not a human health risk.  !
Operational Trends 
• Increasing researcher specification for animals with particular genetic profiles and 

microbiological makeup.  
• Overhead administrative costs continue to increase 
• Increased demand for production strains  
• Service revenue reduction (e.g., import, cryopreservation, procedures). 
• Generally, local demand decreased in FY 2013-14; interstate demand was in-

creased; slipping demand occurred in private institutions and overseas markets.  !
Significant Issues Impacting the Agency  

The ARA’s goal is to improve Australia’s health outcomes by facilitating high-quality, 
world-class biomedical research, which begins by using a high-quality, world-class 
animal model. Significant issues affecting this function are directly related to animal 
production costs, and should institutions choose to raise these animal models them-
selves, without the various controls the ARC employs, animal quality could suffer.  !
Current issues: Lease accrual has increased administrative costs, which must con-
sequently and unfortunately be passed onto customers. This year, overall animal 
sales numbers increased, but to the extent budgeted. The lease situation appears to 
have stabilized with Board approval and signing of a Leas Proposal agreement in 
late June 2014.  An aging phone system and building monitoring system were slated 
for replacement. Immediate consideration must be given for chiller capacity replace-
ment due to the age of the existing units and their failure’s negative effect on the an-
imals and sales. The current chillers are approximately 15 years old. Chiller re-
placement with a high energy efficient model will significantly and positively impact 
the ARC’s utility expenditure !
Emerging issues: Available research funding drives research animal demand. Bio-
medical research funding nationwide received a modest increase (<2%) this FY, less 
than inflation. The current facility is over 30 years old and although it has undergone 
incremental upgrades; it poses no human hazards, but ergonomic solutions could be 
employed. Equipment (e.g., bulk sterilizing capacity), storage capacity, and disaster 
planning are needed. The facility lacks sufficient on site staff development capacity; 
additional staff space will be needed due the current staff census.  !
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There is increasing customer demand (researchers) for animals with an exceptional-
ly high health status. This requires expensive and advanced caging systems. It is 
likely that caging systems and sanitation equipment will continue to require upgrad-
ing to deliver this expectation.  !
Total Revenue Percentage by Customer Group 

!
Total Animal Sales Numbers by Customer Group 

!
Customer-group revenue distributions were more stable during 2013-2014, with ani-
mal sales numbers providing a similar finding.  Overseas animal sales numbers were 
down 14% (principally resulting from declining Singapore sales), private company 
sales numbers were down 12%, and interstate volume surged over 12%. Western 
Australian Universities and Medical Research Institutions animal sales were flat.  !
Revenue Sources and Percentage Change 

!
In 2013-14 Animal Sales revenue and animal numbers sold increased. The Cus-
tomer Strains Services Maintenance revenue decreased, but expenses related to the 
Geniad project as the cage numbers maintained, but not revenue, decreased in late 
2013-14. Although Import and Quarantine Services decreased drastically this FY, the 
FY 2011-12 revenue was A$ 28,974; the FY 2012-13 revenue increase was abnor-
mal—with fewer imports, the ARC kept, rederived, and maintained fewer strains. !
Western Australia (WA) revenue decreased 6% this year, while the number of ani-
mals sold approximates 2012-13. Revenue increased from Curtin University (36.9%) 
and the Perth Zoo (4.3%); revenue decreases occurred at all other WA institutions.  

Customer Groups 2013-14 2012-13

WA Universities and Medical Research Institutions 15.5% 16.5%

Interstate Universities and Medical Research Institutions 77.7% 70.7%

Private Companies 5.8% 5.5%

International Exports 5.6% 7.4%

Customer Groups 2013-14
 

2012-13

WA Universities and Medical Research Institutions 101,282 101,826

Interstate Universities and Medical Research Institutions 207,039 183,743

Private Companies 29,300 33,393

International Exports 7,742 8,967

Revenue Source 2013-14 2012-13 Change

Animal Sales A$ 5,647,707 A$ 5,105,890 11%

Custom Strain Maintenance A$ 932,944    A$ 1,196,063 -22%

Import/Quarantine A$ 39,822      A$ 87,730      -55%
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!
Interstate sales revenue and animal numbers increased 9.9% and 12.7%, respec-
tively. Key market revenue increases occurred in Queensland (18.3%), New South 
Wales (15.6%), and to a lesser extent Victoria (2.6%). Revenue from these three 
states accounted for 96% of interstate sales. !
Private Business revenue increased 5.7%, while animal numbers dropped 12.3%. !
Overseas animal sales revenue and numbers reflect sales to nine countries: Bel-
gium, France, Japan, Malaysia, New Zealand, Singapore, South Korea, Taiwan, and 
the United Kingdom; revenue and animal sales decreased, 23.5% and 13.7%, re-
spectively. Singapore sales continued to erode due to their development and open-
ing of an enhanced production unit through a partnership with Taconic. However, 
sizable sales increases occurred to New Zealand and South Korea. Overseas sales 
were helped by product consistency and quality, customer service, and more favor-
able exchange rates in South Korea and New Zealand. !
Environment 
The ARA reduced its environmental impact via the following actions: 
• All office waste paper is shredded and used in operations or recycled;  
• All plastic, cardboard, and recyclable packaging is recycled; 
• Used animal bedding is composted; 
• We continue to replace fluorescent, incandescent, and halogen bulbs with LED 

bulbs which use less energy and do not contain mercury;  
• Use energy saving strategies in the course of operations;  
• Evaluating an energy efficient chiller to replace the existing chiller, with and without 

incorporating geothermal solution; 
• Evaluating photovoltaic (solar) generation; 
• Utilizing novel diagnostic testing methodologies which drastically reduced the ship-

ping weight, volume, and consumed less laboratory supplies in the process. !
Likely Developments and Operational Forecast 
Possible ARA 2014-15 financial year development: 
• Plan for Pneumocystis carinii and Klebsiella oxytoca rederivation; 
• Refurbish Area 3; 
• Continue refreshing key strains to international standard genetics; 
• Identify rat stock/strain vendor source 
• Continuous improvement in cryopreservation and IVF techniques;  
• Enhance our status as Australia’s premier laboratory rodent supplier by expanding 

our health monitoring programs, ensuring animals are of the highest health status;  
• Chiller replacement and plan facility upgrades; 
• Informally engage stakeholders to ensure operational planning, financial, and ani-

mal models meet or exceed the biomedical research industry’s requirements.  
• Incorporate the updated Australian Code of Practice for the Care and Use of Ani-

mals for Scientific Purposes; 
• Implement AEC ETR findings. !!!
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Animal Ethics Committee 
The AEC is constituted as follows: 

!
Committee constitution and operation follows the Australian Code of Practice for the 
Care and Use of Animals for Scientific Purposes (2013). The Committee approved all 
animal use for research, teaching, and/or testing. !
In addition, the Animal Resources Centre complies with Western Australia’s Animal 
Welfare Act (2002) by holding licenses to “… supply animals for scientific 
purposes…” and to “… use animals for scientific purposes…”, as issued by Western 
Australia’s Department of Local Government and Regional Development. 

AEC Statutory Role Name

Chair
Dr. Pip Milton 

Animal Resources Centre 
Scientific Officer

Category A
Dr. Lydia Pethick 

Animal Resources Centre 
Veterinary Services and Quality Control Manager

Category B Dr. Amanda O’Hara 
Researcher, Murdoch University

Category B Alternate Dr. Nahiid Stephens 
Researcher, Murdoch University

Category C Ms. Cheryl Davenport 
RSPCA Member

Category D Mr. Anthony Pike 
Community Member

Production Representative 
(Non-voting)

Mr. Michael Bunce 
Animal Resources Centre 

General Manager, Production
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
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Auditor General 
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7th Floor Albert Facey House 469 Wellington Street Perth  MAIL TO: Perth BC PO Box 8489 Perth WA 6849  TEL: 08 6557 7500  FAX: 08 6557 7600 

 

   
 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S  REPORT 
 
To the Parliament of Western Australia 
 
ANIMAL RESOURCES AUTHORITY 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
I have audited the accounts and financial statements of the Animal Resources Authority. 
 
The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2014, the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash 
Flows for the year then ended, and Notes comprising a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information. 
 
Board’s  Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
The Board is responsible for keeping proper accounts, and the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards 
and   the   Treasurer’s   Instructions, and for such internal control as the Board determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s  Responsibility 
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
financial statements based on my audit. The audit was conducted in accordance with 
Australian Auditing Standards. Those Standards require compliance with relevant ethical 
requirements relating to audit engagements and that the audit be planned and performed to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures   in   the   financial   statements.   The   procedures   selected   depend   on   the   auditor’s  
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the Authority’s   preparation   and   fair   presentation   of   the  
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Board, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
audit opinion. 
 
Opinion 
In my opinion, the financial statements are based on proper accounts and present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of the Animal Resources Authority at 30 June 2014 and 
its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended. They are in accordance with 
Australian Accounting Standards and  the  Treasurer’s  Instructions. 
 



 !
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Report on Controls 
I have audited the controls exercised by the Animal Resources Authority during the year ended 
30 June 2014. 
 
Controls exercised by the Animal Resources Authority are those policies and procedures 
established by the Board to ensure that the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the 
acquisition and disposal of property, and the incurring of liabilities have been in accordance 
with legislative provisions. 
 
Board’s  Responsibility  for  Controls 
The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate system of internal control to ensure that 
the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of public and 
other property, and the incurring of liabilities are in accordance with the Financial Management 
Act 2006 and the Treasurer’s  Instructions,  and  other  relevant  written  law. 
 
Auditor’s  Responsibility 
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
controls exercised by the Animal Resources Authority based on my audit conducted in 
accordance with Australian Auditing and Assurance Standards.  
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of 
controls to ensure that the Authority complies with the legislative provisions. The procedures 
selected   depend   on   the   auditor’s   judgement   and   include   an   evaluation   of   the   design   and  
implementation of relevant controls. 
 
I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
audit opinion. 
 
Opinion 
In my opinion, the controls exercised by the Animal Resources Authority are sufficiently 
adequate to provide reasonable assurance that the receipt, expenditure and investment of 
money, the acquisition and disposal of property, and the incurring of liabilities have been in 
accordance with legislative provisions during the year ended 30 June 2014. 
 
Report on the Key Performance Indicators 
I have audited the key performance indicators of the Animal Resources Authority for the year 
ended 30 June 2014.  
 
The key performance indicators are the key effectiveness indicators and the key efficiency 
indicators that provide information on outcome achievement and service provision. 
 
Board’s  Responsibility  for  the Key Performance Indicators 
The Board is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the key performance 
indicators in accordance with the Financial Management Act 2006 and   the   Treasurer’s 
Instructions and for such controls as the Board determines necessary to ensure that the key 
performance indicators fairly represent indicated performance. 
 
Auditor’s  Responsibility 
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
key performance indicators based on my audit conducted in accordance with Australian 
Auditing and Assurance Standards.  
 
  



 !
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the key performance 
indicators.   The   procedures   selected   depend   on   the   auditor’s   judgement,   including   the  
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the key performance indicators. In making 
these risk assessments the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Board’s  
preparation and fair presentation of the key performance indicators in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the 
relevance and appropriateness of the key performance indicators for measuring the extent of 
outcome achievement and service provision. 
 
I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
audit opinion. 
 
Opinion 
In my opinion, the key performance indicators of the Animal Resources Authority are relevant 
and appropriate to assist users to assess the Authority’s   performance   and   fairly   represent  
indicated performance for the year ended 30 June 2014. 
 
Independence 
In conducting this audit, I have complied with the independence requirements of the Auditor 
General Act 2006 and Australian Auditing and Assurance Standards, and other relevant ethical 
requirements.  
 
Matters Relating to the Electronic Publication of the Audited Financial Statements and 
Key Performance Indicators 
This  auditor’s  report  relates  to  the  financial  statements  and  key  performance  indicators  of   the 
Animal Resources Authority for the year ended 30 June 2014 included on the Authority’s  
website. The Authority’s  management is responsible for the integrity of the Authority’s  website.  
This audit does not provide assurance on the integrity of the Authority’s  website.  The  auditor’s  
report refers only to the financial statements and key performance indicators described above. 
It does not provide an opinion on any other information which may have been hyperlinked 
to/from these financial statements or key performance indicators. If users of the financial 
statements and key performance indicators are concerned with the inherent risks arising from 
publication on a website, they are advised to refer to the hard copy of the audited financial 
statements and key performance indicators to confirm the information contained in this website 
version of the financial statements and key performance indicators. 
 

 
GLEN CLARKE 
DEPUTY AUDITOR GENERAL 
Delegate of the Auditor General for Western Australia 
Perth, Western Australia 
20 August 2014 
 



Certification of Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2014 !

The accompanying financial statements of the Animal Resources Authority have 
been prepared in compliance with the provisions of the Financial Management Act 
2006 from proper accounts and records to present fairly the financial transactions for 
the financial year ended 30 June 2014 and the financial position as at 30 June 2014. !
At the signing date we are unaware of any circumstances rendering the financial 
statement particulars as misleading or inaccurate. 

! !!!!
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Certification of Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

The accompanying financial statements of the Animal Resources Authority have
been prepared in compliance with the provisions of the Financial Management Act
2006 from proper accounts and records to present fairly the financial-transactions for
the financial year ended 30 June 2014 and the financial position as at 30 June 2014.

+

At the signing date we are unaware of any circumstances rendering the financial
statement particulars as misleading or inaccurate.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income 
For the year ended 30 June 2014 

 

!
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ANIMAL RESOURCES AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 2014 2013
$ $

INCOME
Revenue
Sales 6 7,191,318 6,519,921
Provision of services 6 972,766 1,283,793
Commonwealth grants and contributions 7 74,924 -                 
Interest revenue 8 40,241 29,314
Other revenue 21,643 48,483

Gains
Gain on fair value of biological assets 9 -               433,353

TOTAL INCOME 8,300,892 8,314,864

EXPENSES
Cost of sales and services 6 6,703,653 6,420,920
Employee benefits expense 10 662,362 490,535
Depreciation and amortisation expense 13 82,573 80,260
Accommodation expense 14 237,250 195,579
Supplies and services 11 515,847 455,203
Loss on fair value of biological assets 9 32,484 -                 
Other Expenses 12 451,025 411,755

TOTAL EXPENSES 8,685,194 8,054,252

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD (384,302) 260,612

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Changes in asset revaluation surplus -               -                 
Gains/losses recognised directly in equity -               -                 
Total other comprehensive income -               -                 

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) (384,302) 260,612
FOR THE PERIOD
The Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Patrick Sharp
Animal Resources Authority
For the year ended 30 June 2014



Statement of Financial Position 
As at 30 June 2014 

 

!
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ANIMAL RESOURCES AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 30 June 2014

Note 2014 2013
$ $

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 15 1,950,372 1,651,652
Inventories 16 59,036 102,408
Biological assets 17 2,836,964 2,869,448
Receivables 18 843,385 854,711
Total Current Assets 5,689,757 5,478,219

Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 19 4,090,721 4,351,544
Intangible assets 21 39,812 53,414
Total Non-Current Assets 4,130,533 4,404,958

TOTAL ASSETS 9,820,290 9,883,177

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables 23 947,916 686,999
Provisions 24 639,216 455,901
Total Current Liabilities 1,587,132 1,142,900

Non-Current Liabilities
Provisions 24 138,969 261,786
Total Non-Current Liabilities 138,969 261,786

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,726,101 1,404,686

NET ASSETS 8,094,189 8,478,491

EQUITY
Reserves 25 1,690,936 1,690,936
Retained earnings 25 6,403,253 6,787,555

TOTAL EQUITY 8,094,189 8,478,491

The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Patrick Sharp
Animal Resources Authority
As at 30 June 2014



Statement of Changes in Equity 
For the year ended 30 June 2014 
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ANIMAL RESOURCES AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Reserves Retained Total equity
Earnings

Note
$ $ $

Balance at 1 July 2012 25 1,690,936 6,526,943 8,217,879
Profit - 260,612 260,612
Other comprehensive income - - -
Total Comprehensive income for the period 260,612 260,612
Transactions with owners in their capacity
as owners
   Capital appropriations - - -
   Other contributions by owners - - -
   Distributions to owners - - -
Total - - -
Balance at 30 June 2013 1,690,936 6,787,555 8,478,491

Balance at 1 July 2013 1,690,936 6,787,555 8,478,491
Profit/(loss) - (384,302) (384,302)
Other comprehensive income - - -
Total Comprehensive income for the period (384,302) (384,302)
Transactions with owners in their capacity
as owners
   Capital appropriations - - -
   Other contributions by owners - - -
   Distributions to owners - - -
Total - - -
Balance at 30 June 2014 1,690,936 6,403,253 8,094,189

The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Patrick Sharp
Animal Resources Authority
For the year ended 30 June 2014
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ANIMAL RESOURCES AUTHORITY

 STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note 2014 2013
$ $

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts
Sale of goods and services 7,203,711 6,619,301
Provision of services 972,766 1,283,793
Commonwealth grants and contributions 74,924 -
Interest received 39,174 31,058
GST receipts on sales 779,899 723,010
Other receipts 21,643 48,483

Payments
Employee benefits (4,556,667) (4,107,880)
Supplies and services (2,951,300) (2,932,389)
Other Expenses (451,025) (411,755)
GST payments on purchases (292,922) (277,878)
GST payments to taxation authority (496,781) (435,508)
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 26 343,421 540,235

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Receipts
Proceeds from sale of non-current physical assets - -

Payments
Purchase of non-current physical assets (44,701) (59,559)
Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities (44,701) (59,559)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 298,720 480,676
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 1,651,652 1,170,976
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT AT THE END OF  
THE PERIOD 15 1,950,372 1,651,652

The Statement Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Patrick Sharp
Animal Resources Authority
For the year ended 30 June 2014
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ANIMAL RESOURCES AUTHORITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

Notes To The Financial Statements

Note 1 Australian Accounting Standards

General

Early adoption of standards

Note 2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(a)  General statement

(b)   Basis of preparation

(c)  Reporting entity

(d) Income

(e)  Taxation

(f)  Property, plant and equipment 

Capitalisation / Expensing of assets

The Authority has adopted any applicable, new and revised Australian Accounting Standards from their operative dates.

Provision of services

Note 3 ‘Judgements made by management in applying accounting policies’ discloses judgements that have been made in the process of applying the
Authority’s accounting policies resulting in the most significant effect on amounts recognised in the financial statements.

The Financial Management Act and the Treasurer’s Instructions impose legislative provisions that govern the preparation of financial statements and take
precedence over Australian Accounting Standards, the Framework, Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements of the
AASB.

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting using the historical cost convention, modified by the revaluation of land
and buildings which have been measured at fair value.

The Authority’s financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2014 have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards. The term

‘Australian Accounting Standards’ refers to Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standard Board (AASB).

Where modification is required and has had a material or significant financial effect upon the reported results, details of that modification and the resulting
financial effect are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

The reporting entity comprises the Authority.  There are no related bodies.

Revenue is recognised from the sale of goods and disposal of other assets when the significant risks and rewards of ownership transfer to the purchaser
and can be measured reliably. 

The Authority is a not-for-profit reporting entity that prepares general purpose financial statements in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards,

the Framework, Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) as

applied by the Treasurer’s Instructions. Several of these are modified by the Treasurer’s Instructions to vary application, disclosure, format and wording. 

Gains
Realised and unrealised gains are usually recognised on a net basis. These include gains arising on the disposal of non current assets and some
revaluations of non current assets and the change in fair value of biological assets.

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements have been consistently applied throughout all periods presented unless
otherwise stated.

Sale of goods

Interest

Revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction.

The Authority is not subject to the requirements of the Western Australian Government's Tax Equivalent Regime (TER). 

The financial report is presented in Australian dollars which have been rounded to the nearest dollar.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable.  Revenue is recognised for the major business activities as follows:

Revenue is recognised as the interest accrues.

The Authority cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically permitted by TI 1101 Application of Australian Accounting
Standards and Other Pronouncements. There has been no early adoption of Australian Accounting Standards that have been issued or amended (but not
operative) by the Authority for the annual reporting period ended 30 June 2014.

Note 4 ‘Key sources of estimation uncertainty’ discloses key assumptions made concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

Items of property, plant and equipment costing $5,000 or more are recognised as assets and the cost of utilising assets is expensed (depreciated) over
their useful lives. Items of property, plant and equipment costing less than $5,000 are immediately expensed direct to the Statement of Comprehensive
Income (other than where they form part of a group of similar items which are significant in total).  

Revenue recognition

Patrick Sharp
Animal Resources Authority
For the year ended 30 June 2014
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ANIMAL RESOURCES AUTHORITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

Buildings 20 years
Motor Vehicles 10 years
Plant & Equipment
     Production Plant & Equipment 10 years
     Office Furniture & Equipment 3 years

Intangible assets 

In the absence of market-based evidence, fair vaue of buildings is determined on the basis of existing use. This normally applies where buildings are
specialised or where land use is restricted. Fair value for existing use assets is determined by reference to the cost of replacing the remaining future
economic benefits embodied in the asset, i.e. the depreciated replacement cost. Where the fair value of buildings is determined on the depreciated
replacement cost basis, the gross carrying amount and the accumulated depreciation are restated proportionately. Fair value for restricted use land is
determined by comparison with market evidence for land with similar approximate utility (high restricted use land) or market value of comparable
unrestricted land (low restricted use land).

All non-current assets having a limited useful life are systematically depreciated over their estimated useful lives in a manner that reflects the consumption
of their future economic benefits.

Where non-current assets have been revalued, depreciation is applied against the revalued amount from the date of valuation.

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. For assets acquired at no cost or for nominal cost, the cost is their fair value at the date of acquisition.

Capitalisation/expensing of assets

Depreciation is calculated using the straight line method, using rates which are reviewed annually. Estimated useful lives for each class of depreciable
asset are:

The cost model is applied for subsequent measurement requiring the asset to be carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Leasehold improvements consist of buildings, modifications and additions to buildings erected on land leased long term from Murdoch University and are
being depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

Depreciation

For items of property, plant and equipment acquired at no cost or for nominal cost, the cost is the fair value at the date of acquisition. However as
revaluation had been done on June 2012, assets purchased before this date was revalued at this amount.

Where market-based evidence is available, the fair value of buildings is determined on the basis of current market buying values determined by reference
to recent market transactions. When buildings are revalued by reference to recent market transactions, the accumulated depreciation is eliminated against
the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount restated to the revalued amount.

All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost.

Subsequent measurement
Subsequent to initial recognition as an asset, the revaluation model is used for the measurement of  buildings and historical cost for all other property, 
plant and equipment.  Buildings are carried at fair value less accumulated depreciation. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at 
historical cost less accumulated depreciation.

Initial recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment costing $5,000 or more are recognised as assets and the cost of utilising assets is expensed (depreciated) over
their useful lives. Items of property, plant and equipment costing less than $5,000 are immediately expensed direct to the Statement of Comprehensive
Income (other than where they form part of a group of similar items which are significant in total).  

The most significant assumptions and judgements in estimating fair value are made in assessing whether to apply the existing use basis to assets and in
determining estimated economic life. Professional judgement by the valuer is required where the evidence does not provide a clear distinction between
market type assets and existing use assets.

Acquisitions of intangible assets costing $5,000 or more and internally generated intangible assets costing $50,000 or more are capitalised. The cost of
utilising the assets is expensed (amortised) over their useful life. Costs incurred below these thresholds are immediately expensed directly to the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

ANIMAL RESOURCES AUTHORITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

Software(a) 3 years

(g)  Impairment of assets

(h)   Leases

(i)   Financial instruments

• Payables

(j)   Cash and cash equivalents

(k)  Biological Assets

(l)  Inventories

(m)  Receivables

Non-animal inventories are valued at cost. Inventory is valued on first in first out basis.

Financial Assets

Animal stocks are reflected in the Statement of Financial Position as a current asset. Animal stocks are valued in accordance with AASB 141, Agriculture.  

The standard requires that biological assets and agricultural produce that relate to agricultural activity be measured at fair value less estimated point of

sale costs with any resultant gain or loss recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. The net fair value of pedigree breeding stock is

determined as the sale price of pedigree pairs, the fair value of inbred and outbred breeding colonies is determined as the sale price of un-timed pregnant

animals and the fair value of the animal stocks held for sale is determined as the average sale price for the class of animal concerned.

The fair value of short-term receivables and payables is the transaction cost or the face value because there is no interest rate applicable and subsequent
measurement is not required as the effect of discounting is not material.

Accrued salaries (see note 23 ‘Payables’) represent the amount due to staff but unpaid at the end of the financial year. Accrued salaries are settled within

a fortnight of the financial year end.  The Authority considers the carrying amount of accrued salaries to be equivalent to its fair value.

• Term deposits

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalent (and restricted cash and cash equivalent) assets comprise cash on hand and
short-term deposits with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and which are subject to
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Initial recognition and measurement of financial instruments is at fair value which normally equates to the transaction cost or the face value. Subsequent
measurement is at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial Liabilities

Property plant and equipment are tested for any indication of impairment at the end of each reporting period. Where there is an indication of impairment,

the recoverable amount is estimated. Where the recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written

down to the recoverable amount and an impairment loss is recognised. Where an asset measured at cost is written down to recoverable amount, an

impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss. Where a previously revalued asset is written down to recoverable amount, the loss is recognised as a

revaluation decrement in other comprehensive income. As the Authority is a not-for-profit entity, unless an asset has been identified as a surplus asset,

the recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and depreciated replacement cost.

• Receivables; and

The risk of impairment is generally limited to circumstances where an asset’s depreciation is materially understated, where the replacement cost is falling
or where there is a significant change in useful life. Each relevant class of assets is reviewed annually to verify that the accumulated
depreciation/amortisation reflects the level of consumption or expiration of asset’s future economic benefits and to evaluate any impairment risk from
falling replacement costs.

The expected useful lives for each class of intangible asset are:

The Authority holds operating leases for vehicles. Lease payments are expensed on a straight line basis over the lease term as this represents the pattern
of benefits derived from the vehicles.

The recoverable amount of assets identified as surplus assets is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and the present value of future cash flows

expected to be derived from the asset. Surplus assets carried at fair value have no risk of material impairment where fair value is determined by reference

to market-based evidence. Where fair value is determined by reference to depreciated replacement cost, surplus assets are at risk of impairment and the

recoverable amount is measured. Surplus assets at cost are tested for indications of impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is calculated for the period of the expected benefit (estimated useful life which is reviewed

annually) on the straight line basis. All intangible assets controlled by the Authority have a finite useful life and zero residual value.

• Receivables

Financial Instruments have been disaggregated into the following classes:

• Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost.

• Cash and cash equivalents

In addition to cash and bank overdraft, the Authority has two categories of financial instrument:

(a) Software that is not integral to the operation of any related hardware

Patrick Sharp
Animal Resources Authority
For the year ended 30 June 2014
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ANIMAL RESOURCES AUTHORITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

Software(a) 3 years

(g)  Impairment of assets

(h)   Leases

(i)   Financial instruments

• Payables

(j)   Cash and cash equivalents

(k)  Biological Assets

(l)  Inventories

(m)  Receivables

Non-animal inventories are valued at cost. Inventory is valued on first in first out basis.

Financial Assets

Animal stocks are reflected in the Statement of Financial Position as a current asset. Animal stocks are valued in accordance with AASB 141, Agriculture.  

The standard requires that biological assets and agricultural produce that relate to agricultural activity be measured at fair value less estimated point of

sale costs with any resultant gain or loss recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. The net fair value of pedigree breeding stock is

determined as the sale price of pedigree pairs, the fair value of inbred and outbred breeding colonies is determined as the sale price of un-timed pregnant

animals and the fair value of the animal stocks held for sale is determined as the average sale price for the class of animal concerned.

The fair value of short-term receivables and payables is the transaction cost or the face value because there is no interest rate applicable and subsequent
measurement is not required as the effect of discounting is not material.

Accrued salaries (see note 23 ‘Payables’) represent the amount due to staff but unpaid at the end of the financial year. Accrued salaries are settled within

a fortnight of the financial year end.  The Authority considers the carrying amount of accrued salaries to be equivalent to its fair value.

• Term deposits

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalent (and restricted cash and cash equivalent) assets comprise cash on hand and
short-term deposits with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and which are subject to
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Initial recognition and measurement of financial instruments is at fair value which normally equates to the transaction cost or the face value. Subsequent
measurement is at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial Liabilities

Property plant and equipment are tested for any indication of impairment at the end of each reporting period. Where there is an indication of impairment,

the recoverable amount is estimated. Where the recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written

down to the recoverable amount and an impairment loss is recognised. Where an asset measured at cost is written down to recoverable amount, an

impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss. Where a previously revalued asset is written down to recoverable amount, the loss is recognised as a

revaluation decrement in other comprehensive income. As the Authority is a not-for-profit entity, unless an asset has been identified as a surplus asset,

the recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and depreciated replacement cost.

• Receivables; and

The risk of impairment is generally limited to circumstances where an asset’s depreciation is materially understated, where the replacement cost is falling
or where there is a significant change in useful life. Each relevant class of assets is reviewed annually to verify that the accumulated
depreciation/amortisation reflects the level of consumption or expiration of asset’s future economic benefits and to evaluate any impairment risk from
falling replacement costs.

The expected useful lives for each class of intangible asset are:

The Authority holds operating leases for vehicles. Lease payments are expensed on a straight line basis over the lease term as this represents the pattern
of benefits derived from the vehicles.

The recoverable amount of assets identified as surplus assets is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and the present value of future cash flows

expected to be derived from the asset. Surplus assets carried at fair value have no risk of material impairment where fair value is determined by reference

to market-based evidence. Where fair value is determined by reference to depreciated replacement cost, surplus assets are at risk of impairment and the

recoverable amount is measured. Surplus assets at cost are tested for indications of impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is calculated for the period of the expected benefit (estimated useful life which is reviewed

annually) on the straight line basis. All intangible assets controlled by the Authority have a finite useful life and zero residual value.

• Receivables

Financial Instruments have been disaggregated into the following classes:

• Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost.

• Cash and cash equivalents

In addition to cash and bank overdraft, the Authority has two categories of financial instrument:

(a) Software that is not integral to the operation of any related hardware

ANIMAL RESOURCES AUTHORITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

(n)   Payables

(o)  Provisions 

The liability for annual leave that is expected to be settled within 12 months after the end of the reporting period is recognised and measured at the
undiscounted amounts expected to be paid when the liability is settled.

Eligible employees contribute to the Pension Scheme, a defined benefit pension scheme closed to new members since 1987, or the Gold State
Superannuation Scheme (GSS), a defined benefit lump sum scheme closed to new members since 1995.

Receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice amount less an allowance for any uncollectible amounts (i.e impairment). The collectability of
receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis and any receivables identified as uncollectible are written-off against the allowance account. The allowance
for uncollectible amounts (doubtful debts) is raised when there is objective evidence that the Authority will not be able to collect its debts. The carrying
amount is equivalent to fair value as it is due for settlement within 30 days.

Payables are recognised at the amounts payable when the Authority becomes obliged to make future payments as a result of a purchase of assets or
services.  The carrying amount is equivalent to fair value, as settlement is generally within 30 days.  

Long service leave

The expected future payments are discounted to present value using market yields at the end of the reporting period on national government bonds with
terms to maturity that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

 Provisions - employee benefits

The Pension Scheme and the pre-transfer benefit for employees who transferred to the GSS are defined benefit schemes. These benefits are wholly
unfunded and the liabilities for future payments are provided at the end of the reporting period.  

All annual leave and long service leave provisions are in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period.

When assessing expected future payments consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels including non-salary components such as
employer superannuation contributions, as well as the experience of employee departures and periods of service. The expected future payments are
discounted using market yields at the end of the reporting period on national government bonds with terms to maturity that match, as closely as possible,
the estimated future cash outflows.

The GSS, the WSS, and the GESBS, where the current service superannuation charge is paid by the Authority to the GESB, are defined contribution
schemes. The liabilities for current service superannuation charges under the GSS, the WSS, and the GESBS are extinguished by the concurrent
payment of employer contributions to the GESB.

Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing or amount and are recognised where there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event and when the outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is probable and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period. See note 24 'Provisions'.

The Government Employees Superannuation Board (GESB) and other fund providers administer public sector superannuation arrangements in Western
Australia in accordance with legislative requirements. Eligibility criteria for membership in particular schemes for public sector employees vary according to
commencement and implementation dates.

Employees commencing employment prior to 16 April 2007 who were not members of either the Pension Scheme or the GSS became non-contributory

members of the West State Superannuation Scheme (WSS). Employees commencing employment on or after 16 April 2007 became members of the

GESB Super Scheme (GESBS). From 30 March 2012, existing members of the WSS or GESBS and new employees have been able to choose their

preferred superannuation fund provider. The Authority makes contributions to GESB or other fund providers on behalf of employees in compliance with the

Commonwealth Government’s Superannuation Guarantee (Administration) Act 1992. Contributions to these accumulation schemes extinguish the

Authority’s liability for superannuation charges in respect of employees who are not members of the Pension Scheme or GSS.

The provision for annual leave is classified as a current liability as the Authority does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Superannuation

Unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current liabilities as the Authority does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period. Pre-conditional and conditional long service leave provisions are classified as non-
current liabilities because the Authority has an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability until the employee has completed the requisite
years of service.

Annual leave 

Long service leave is not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the reporting period and is therefore recognised and measured at

the present value of amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement.

When assessing expected future payments consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels including non-salary components such as
employer superannuation contributions, as well as the experience of employee departures and periods of service. The expected future payments are
discounted using market yields at the end of the reporting period on national government bonds with terms to maturity that match, as closely as possible,
the estimated future cash outflows.

Patrick Sharp
Animal Resources Authority
For the year ended 30 June 2014
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ANIMAL RESOURCES AUTHORITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

(n)   Payables

(o)  Provisions 

The liability for annual leave that is expected to be settled within 12 months after the end of the reporting period is recognised and measured at the
undiscounted amounts expected to be paid when the liability is settled.

Eligible employees contribute to the Pension Scheme, a defined benefit pension scheme closed to new members since 1987, or the Gold State
Superannuation Scheme (GSS), a defined benefit lump sum scheme closed to new members since 1995.

Receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice amount less an allowance for any uncollectible amounts (i.e impairment). The collectability of
receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis and any receivables identified as uncollectible are written-off against the allowance account. The allowance
for uncollectible amounts (doubtful debts) is raised when there is objective evidence that the Authority will not be able to collect its debts. The carrying
amount is equivalent to fair value as it is due for settlement within 30 days.

Payables are recognised at the amounts payable when the Authority becomes obliged to make future payments as a result of a purchase of assets or
services.  The carrying amount is equivalent to fair value, as settlement is generally within 30 days.  

Long service leave

The expected future payments are discounted to present value using market yields at the end of the reporting period on national government bonds with
terms to maturity that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

 Provisions - employee benefits

The Pension Scheme and the pre-transfer benefit for employees who transferred to the GSS are defined benefit schemes. These benefits are wholly
unfunded and the liabilities for future payments are provided at the end of the reporting period.  

All annual leave and long service leave provisions are in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period.

When assessing expected future payments consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels including non-salary components such as
employer superannuation contributions, as well as the experience of employee departures and periods of service. The expected future payments are
discounted using market yields at the end of the reporting period on national government bonds with terms to maturity that match, as closely as possible,
the estimated future cash outflows.

The GSS, the WSS, and the GESBS, where the current service superannuation charge is paid by the Authority to the GESB, are defined contribution
schemes. The liabilities for current service superannuation charges under the GSS, the WSS, and the GESBS are extinguished by the concurrent
payment of employer contributions to the GESB.

Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing or amount and are recognised where there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event and when the outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is probable and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period. See note 24 'Provisions'.

The Government Employees Superannuation Board (GESB) and other fund providers administer public sector superannuation arrangements in Western
Australia in accordance with legislative requirements. Eligibility criteria for membership in particular schemes for public sector employees vary according to
commencement and implementation dates.

Employees commencing employment prior to 16 April 2007 who were not members of either the Pension Scheme or the GSS became non-contributory

members of the West State Superannuation Scheme (WSS). Employees commencing employment on or after 16 April 2007 became members of the

GESB Super Scheme (GESBS). From 30 March 2012, existing members of the WSS or GESBS and new employees have been able to choose their

preferred superannuation fund provider. The Authority makes contributions to GESB or other fund providers on behalf of employees in compliance with the

Commonwealth Government’s Superannuation Guarantee (Administration) Act 1992. Contributions to these accumulation schemes extinguish the

Authority’s liability for superannuation charges in respect of employees who are not members of the Pension Scheme or GSS.

The provision for annual leave is classified as a current liability as the Authority does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Superannuation

Unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current liabilities as the Authority does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period. Pre-conditional and conditional long service leave provisions are classified as non-
current liabilities because the Authority has an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability until the employee has completed the requisite
years of service.

Annual leave 

Long service leave is not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the reporting period and is therefore recognised and measured at

the present value of amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement.

When assessing expected future payments consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels including non-salary components such as
employer superannuation contributions, as well as the experience of employee departures and periods of service. The expected future payments are
discounted using market yields at the end of the reporting period on national government bonds with terms to maturity that match, as closely as possible,
the estimated future cash outflows.

ANIMAL RESOURCES AUTHORITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

(p)   Superannuation expense

• profit or loss:
• current service cost;
• past service cost; and
• interest cost.

• other comprehensive income:
• actuarial gains and losses.

(q)  Comparative figures

Note 3 Judgements made by management in applying accounting policies

Note 4 Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Note 5 Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates

AASB 13

AASB 119

AASB 1048

AASB 2011-8

Fair Value Measurement

Initial application of an Australian Accounting Standard

Operating lease commitments

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements about the application of accounting policies that have a significant

effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements. The Authority evaluates these judgements regularly.

The Authority has entered into a commercial lease and has determined that the lessor retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
property. Accordingly, the lease has been classified as an operating lease.

The Authority has applied the following Australian Accounting Standards effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2013 that
impacted on the Authority.

Long Service Leave
Several estimations and assumptions used in calculating the Authority’s long service leave provision include expected future salary rates, discount rates,
employee retention rates and expected future payments. Changes in these estimations and assumptions may impact on the carrying amount of the long
service leave provision.

This Standard supersedes AASB 119 (October 2010), making changes to the recognition,
presentation and disclosure requirements.

Employee Benefits

The Authority assessed employee leave patterns to determine whether annual leave is a short-
term or other long-term employee benefit. The resultant discounting of annual leave liabilities that
were previously measured at the undiscounted amounts is not material.

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 13 [AASB 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 7, 9,

2009-11, 2010-7, 101, 102, 108, 110, 116, 117, 118, 119, 120, 121, 128, 131, 132, 133, 134, 136,

138, 139, 140, 141, 1004, 1023 & 1038 and Int 2, 4, 12, 13, 14, 17, 19, 131 & 132]

Interpretation of Standards

This Standard supersedes AASB 1048 (June 2012), enabling references to the Interpretations in

all other Standards to be updated by reissuing the service Standard. There is no financial impact.

Key estimates and assumptions concerning the future are based on historical experience and various other factors that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Comparative figures are, where appropriate, reclassified to be comparable with the figures presented in the current financial year.

This Standard defines fair value, sets out a framework for measuring fair value and requires

additional disclosures for assets and liabilities measured at fair value. There is no financial impact.

 Provisions - Other

Adoption of fair value versus cost basis for plant and equipment

Employment on-costs, including workers' compensation insurance, are not employee benefits and are recognised separately as liabilities and expenses
when the employment to which they relate has occurred. Employment on-costs are not included as part of the Authority's 'Employee benefits expense' and
the related liability is included in Employment on-costs provision.

The adoption of fair value versus cost basis for plant and equipment as outlined in Note 2 (f).

For defined benefit plans (the Pension Scheme and the pre-transfer component of the GSS), changes in the defined benefit obligation are recognised in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income either in profit or loss, or, other comprehensive income as follows:

Superannuation expense is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in profit or loss for defined contribution plans, including the concurrent
payment of employer contributions to the GSS scheme, as and when the contributions fall due.

The GSS is a defined benefit scheme for the purposes of employees and whole-of-government reporting. However, from an agency perspective, apart
from the pre-transfer benefits, it is a defined contribution plan under AASB 119.

Employment on-costs

Patrick Sharp
Animal Resources Authority
For the year ended 30 June 2014
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(p)   Superannuation expense

• profit or loss:
• current service cost;
• past service cost; and
• interest cost.

• other comprehensive income:
• actuarial gains and losses.

(q)  Comparative figures

Note 3 Judgements made by management in applying accounting policies

Note 4 Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Note 5 Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates

AASB 13

AASB 119

AASB 1048

AASB 2011-8

Fair Value Measurement

Initial application of an Australian Accounting Standard

Operating lease commitments

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements about the application of accounting policies that have a significant

effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements. The Authority evaluates these judgements regularly.

The Authority has entered into a commercial lease and has determined that the lessor retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
property. Accordingly, the lease has been classified as an operating lease.

The Authority has applied the following Australian Accounting Standards effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2013 that
impacted on the Authority.

Long Service Leave
Several estimations and assumptions used in calculating the Authority’s long service leave provision include expected future salary rates, discount rates,
employee retention rates and expected future payments. Changes in these estimations and assumptions may impact on the carrying amount of the long
service leave provision.

This Standard supersedes AASB 119 (October 2010), making changes to the recognition,
presentation and disclosure requirements.

Employee Benefits

The Authority assessed employee leave patterns to determine whether annual leave is a short-
term or other long-term employee benefit. The resultant discounting of annual leave liabilities that
were previously measured at the undiscounted amounts is not material.

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 13 [AASB 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 7, 9,

2009-11, 2010-7, 101, 102, 108, 110, 116, 117, 118, 119, 120, 121, 128, 131, 132, 133, 134, 136,

138, 139, 140, 141, 1004, 1023 & 1038 and Int 2, 4, 12, 13, 14, 17, 19, 131 & 132]

Interpretation of Standards

This Standard supersedes AASB 1048 (June 2012), enabling references to the Interpretations in

all other Standards to be updated by reissuing the service Standard. There is no financial impact.

Key estimates and assumptions concerning the future are based on historical experience and various other factors that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Comparative figures are, where appropriate, reclassified to be comparable with the figures presented in the current financial year.

This Standard defines fair value, sets out a framework for measuring fair value and requires

additional disclosures for assets and liabilities measured at fair value. There is no financial impact.

 Provisions - Other

Adoption of fair value versus cost basis for plant and equipment

Employment on-costs, including workers' compensation insurance, are not employee benefits and are recognised separately as liabilities and expenses
when the employment to which they relate has occurred. Employment on-costs are not included as part of the Authority's 'Employee benefits expense' and
the related liability is included in Employment on-costs provision.

The adoption of fair value versus cost basis for plant and equipment as outlined in Note 2 (f).

For defined benefit plans (the Pension Scheme and the pre-transfer component of the GSS), changes in the defined benefit obligation are recognised in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income either in profit or loss, or, other comprehensive income as follows:

Superannuation expense is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in profit or loss for defined contribution plans, including the concurrent
payment of employer contributions to the GSS scheme, as and when the contributions fall due.

The GSS is a defined benefit scheme for the purposes of employees and whole-of-government reporting. However, from an agency perspective, apart
from the pre-transfer benefits, it is a defined contribution plan under AASB 119.

Employment on-costs

ANIMAL RESOURCES AUTHORITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

AASB 2011-10

AASB 2012-2

AASB 2012-5

AASB 2012-6

AASB 2013-9

on/after

Int 21

AASB 9

AASB 14

Financial Instruments

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Conceptual Framework, Materiality and
Financial Instruments.

Operative for reporting

This Interpretation clarifies the circumstances under which a liability to pay a government levy

imposed should be recognised. There is no financial impact for the Authority at reporting date.

1 January 2016

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 119 (September 2011)[AASB
1, 8, 101, 124, 134, 1049 & 2011-8 and Int 14]

This Standard replaces the existing definition and fair value guidance in other Australian
Accounting Standards and Interpretations as the result of issuing AASB 13 in September 2011.
There is no financial impact.

This Standard amends the required disclosures in AASB 7 to include information that will enable

users of an entity’s financial statements to evaluate the effect or potential effect of netting

arrangements, including rights of set-off associated with the entity’s recognised financial assets

and recognised financial liabilities, on the entity’s financial position. There is no financial impact.

Part A of this omnibus Standard makes amendments to other Standards arising from revisions to
the Australian Accounting Conceptual Framework for periods ending on or after 20 December
2013. Other Parts of this Standard become operative in later periods. There is no financial impact
for Part A of the Standard.

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Disclosures – Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities [AASB 7 & 132]

This Standard amends the mandatory effective date of AASB 9 Financial Instruments to 1 January
2015 (instead of 1 January 2013). Further amendments are also made to numerous
consequential amendments arising from AASB 9 that will now apply from 1 January 2015. There
is no financial impact.

This Standard makes amendments to the Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations as

a consequence of the annual improvements process. There is no financial impact.

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Mandatory Effective Date of AASB 9 and
Transition Disclosures [AASB 9, 2009-11, 2010-7, 2011-7 & 2011-8]

The mandatory application date of this Standard was amended to 1 January 2018. The Authority
has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard.

Future impact of Australian Accounting Standards not yet operative

The Authority has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard.

The Authority cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically permitted by TI 1101 Application of Australian Accounting
Standards and Other Pronouncements. Consequently, the Authority has not applied early any following Australian Accounting Standards and Australian
Accounting Interpretations that have been issued and that may impact the Authority but are not yet effective. Where applicable, the Authority plans to apply
these Standards from their application date:

1 January 2017

periods beginning

Levies

Regulatory Deferral Accounts

1 January 2014

This Standard supersedes AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, 
introducing a number of changes to accounting treatments.

This Standard makes amendments to other Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations

as a result of issuing AASB 119 in September 2011. The resultant discounting of annual leave

liabilities that were previously measured at the undiscounted amounts is not material.

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from Annual Improvements 2009-11
Cycle [AASB 1, 101, 116, 132 & 134 and Int 2]

Patrick Sharp
Animal Resources Authority
For the year ended 30 June 2014
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AASB 2011-10

AASB 2012-2

AASB 2012-5

AASB 2012-6

AASB 2013-9

on/after

Int 21

AASB 9

AASB 14

Financial Instruments

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Conceptual Framework, Materiality and
Financial Instruments.

Operative for reporting

This Interpretation clarifies the circumstances under which a liability to pay a government levy

imposed should be recognised. There is no financial impact for the Authority at reporting date.

1 January 2016

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 119 (September 2011)[AASB
1, 8, 101, 124, 134, 1049 & 2011-8 and Int 14]

This Standard replaces the existing definition and fair value guidance in other Australian
Accounting Standards and Interpretations as the result of issuing AASB 13 in September 2011.
There is no financial impact.

This Standard amends the required disclosures in AASB 7 to include information that will enable

users of an entity’s financial statements to evaluate the effect or potential effect of netting

arrangements, including rights of set-off associated with the entity’s recognised financial assets

and recognised financial liabilities, on the entity’s financial position. There is no financial impact.

Part A of this omnibus Standard makes amendments to other Standards arising from revisions to
the Australian Accounting Conceptual Framework for periods ending on or after 20 December
2013. Other Parts of this Standard become operative in later periods. There is no financial impact
for Part A of the Standard.

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Disclosures – Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities [AASB 7 & 132]

This Standard amends the mandatory effective date of AASB 9 Financial Instruments to 1 January
2015 (instead of 1 January 2013). Further amendments are also made to numerous
consequential amendments arising from AASB 9 that will now apply from 1 January 2015. There
is no financial impact.

This Standard makes amendments to the Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations as

a consequence of the annual improvements process. There is no financial impact.

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Mandatory Effective Date of AASB 9 and
Transition Disclosures [AASB 9, 2009-11, 2010-7, 2011-7 & 2011-8]

The mandatory application date of this Standard was amended to 1 January 2018. The Authority
has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard.

Future impact of Australian Accounting Standards not yet operative

The Authority has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard.

The Authority cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically permitted by TI 1101 Application of Australian Accounting
Standards and Other Pronouncements. Consequently, the Authority has not applied early any following Australian Accounting Standards and Australian
Accounting Interpretations that have been issued and that may impact the Authority but are not yet effective. Where applicable, the Authority plans to apply
these Standards from their application date:

1 January 2017

periods beginning

Levies

Regulatory Deferral Accounts

1 January 2014

This Standard supersedes AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, 
introducing a number of changes to accounting treatments.

This Standard makes amendments to other Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations

as a result of issuing AASB 119 in September 2011. The resultant discounting of annual leave

liabilities that were previously measured at the undiscounted amounts is not material.

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from Annual Improvements 2009-11
Cycle [AASB 1, 101, 116, 132 & 134 and Int 2]

ANIMAL RESOURCES AUTHORITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

AASB 2011-10

AASB 2012-2

AASB 2012-5

AASB 2012-6

AASB 2013-9

on/after

Int 21

AASB 9

AASB 14

AASB 1031

Financial Instruments

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Conceptual Framework, Materiality and
Financial Instruments.

Operative for reporting

This Interpretation clarifies the circumstances under which a liability to pay a government levy

imposed should be recognised. There is no financial impact for the Authority at reporting date.

Materiality
This Standard supersedes AASB 1031 (February 2010), removing Australian guidance on
materiality not available in IFRSs and refers to guidance on materiality in other Australian
pronouncements. There is no financial impact.

1 January 2016

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 119 (September 2011)[AASB
1, 8, 101, 124, 134, 1049 & 2011-8 and Int 14]

This Standard replaces the existing definition and fair value guidance in other Australian
Accounting Standards and Interpretations as the result of issuing AASB 13 in September 2011.
There is no financial impact.

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 13 [AASB 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 7, 9,

2009-11, 2010-7, 101, 102, 108, 110, 116, 117, 118, 119, 120, 121, 128, 131, 132, 133, 134, 136,

138, 139, 140, 141, 1004, 1023 & 1038 and Int 2, 4, 12, 13, 14, 17, 19, 131 & 132]

This Standard amends the required disclosures in AASB 7 to include information that will enable

users of an entity’s financial statements to evaluate the effect or potential effect of netting

arrangements, including rights of set-off associated with the entity’s recognised financial assets

and recognised financial liabilities, on the entity’s financial position. There is no financial impact.

Part A of this omnibus Standard makes amendments to other Standards arising from revisions to
the Australian Accounting Conceptual Framework for periods ending on or after 20 December
2013. Other Parts of this Standard become operative in later periods. There is no financial impact
for Part A of the Standard.

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Disclosures – Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities [AASB 7 & 132]

This Standard amends the mandatory effective date of AASB 9 Financial Instruments to 1 January
2015 (instead of 1 January 2013). Further amendments are also made to numerous
consequential amendments arising from AASB 9 that will now apply from 1 January 2015. There
is no financial impact.

This Standard makes amendments to the Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations as

a consequence of the annual improvements process. There is no financial impact.

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Mandatory Effective Date of AASB 9 and
Transition Disclosures [AASB 9, 2009-11, 2010-7, 2011-7 & 2011-8]

The mandatory application date of this Standard was amended to 1 January 2018. The Authority
has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard.

Future impact of Australian Accounting Standards not yet operative

The Authority has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard.

The Authority cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically permitted by TI 1101 Application of Australian Accounting
Standards and Other Pronouncements. Consequently, the Authority has not applied early any following Australian Accounting Standards and Australian
Accounting Interpretations that have been issued and that may impact the Authority but are not yet effective. Where applicable, the Authority plans to apply
these Standards from their application date:

1 January 2017

periods beginning

1 January 2014

Levies

Regulatory Deferral Accounts

1 January 2014

This Standard supersedes AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, 
introducing a number of changes to accounting treatments.

This Standard makes amendments to other Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations

as a result of issuing AASB 119 in September 2011. The resultant discounting of annual leave

liabilities that were previously measured at the undiscounted amounts is not material.

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from Annual Improvements 2009-11
Cycle [AASB 1, 101, 116, 132 & 134 and Int 2]

ANIMAL RESOURCES AUTHORITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

AASB 2010-7

AASB 2012-3

AASB 2013-3

AASB 2013-9

AASB 2014-1

Note 6 Trading Profit 2014 2013
$   $   

Sale of goods (animals and freight) 7,191,318 6,519,920
Services (colony maintenance) 972,766 1,283,793

8,164,084 7,803,713
Cost of sales and services:

Opening Inventory 102,408 125,050
Purchases 1,547,429 1,528,678
Overheads 5,112,852 4,869,600
Closing Inventory (59,036) (102,408)

Cost of sales and services 6,703,653 6,420,920

Trading Profit 1,460,431 1,382,793

Note 7 Commonwealth grants and contribution 2014 2013
$   $   

Recurrent grants 74,924 -                      
74,924 -                      

[modified by AASB 2010-7]

1 January 2015

This Standard makes consequential amendments to other Australian Accounting Standards and

Interpretations as a result of issuing AASB 9 in December 2010. The Authority has not yet

determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard.

1 January 2015

Amendments to AASB 136 – Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets. 1 January 2014

AASB 2009-11

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 (December 2010) [AASB
1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 120, 121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 137, 139, 1023 & 1038
and Int 2, 5, 10, 12, 19 & 127]

The model Authority does not routinely hold financial assets and financial liabilities that it intends
to settle on a net basis, therefore there is no financial impact.

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101,

102, 108, 112, 118, 121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 10 & 12]

1 January 2014

This Standard adds application guidance to AASB 132 to address inconsistencies identified in
applying some of the offsetting criteria, including clarifying the meaning of “currently has a legally
enforceable right of set-off” and that some gross settlement systems may be considered
equivalent to net settlement.

Financial year 2013-14 grants comprise an Australian Phenomics Network!(APN)!grant of $74,924. Grant terms specify its use to fund IVF experimental

procedures and refinement which includes lab consumables, lab staff time, animals, and other such materials. It is for ARC trials conducted to

improve procedures associated with APN services. The grant has been recognised in its entirety upon receipt as the only condition applying to its

use;!it!is!not!subject!to!performance!measures!in!terms!of!service!delivery.!

This Standard introduces editorial and disclosure changes. There is no financial impact.

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Conceptual Framework, Materiality and
Financial Instruments.

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities [AASB 132]

The Authority has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard.

1 January 2014

1 January 2016

1 January 2014
1 January 2017

This omnibus Standard makes amendments to other Standards arising from the deletion of
references to AASB 1031 in other Standards for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
(Part B), and, defers the application of AASB 9 to 1 January 2017 (Part C). The Authority has not
yet determined the application or the potential impact of AASB 9, otherwise there is no financial
impact for Part B.

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards
1 January 2015

1 January 2018

Patrick Sharp
Animal Resources Authority
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AASB 2010-7

AASB 2012-3

AASB 2013-3

AASB 2013-9

AASB 2014-1

Note 6 Trading Profit 2014 2013
$   $   

Sale of goods (animals and freight) 7,191,318 6,519,920
Services (colony maintenance) 972,766 1,283,793

8,164,084 7,803,713
Cost of sales and services:

Opening Inventory 102,408 125,050
Purchases 1,547,429 1,528,678
Overheads 5,112,852 4,869,600
Closing Inventory (59,036) (102,408)

Cost of sales and services 6,703,653 6,420,920

Trading Profit 1,460,431 1,382,793

Note 7 Commonwealth grants and contribution 2014 2013
$   $   

Recurrent grants 74,924 -                      
74,924 -                      

[modified by AASB 2010-7]

1 January 2015

This Standard makes consequential amendments to other Australian Accounting Standards and

Interpretations as a result of issuing AASB 9 in December 2010. The Authority has not yet

determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard.

1 January 2015

Amendments to AASB 136 – Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets. 1 January 2014

AASB 2009-11

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 (December 2010) [AASB
1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 120, 121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 137, 139, 1023 & 1038
and Int 2, 5, 10, 12, 19 & 127]

The model Authority does not routinely hold financial assets and financial liabilities that it intends
to settle on a net basis, therefore there is no financial impact.

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101,

102, 108, 112, 118, 121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 10 & 12]

1 January 2014

This Standard adds application guidance to AASB 132 to address inconsistencies identified in
applying some of the offsetting criteria, including clarifying the meaning of “currently has a legally
enforceable right of set-off” and that some gross settlement systems may be considered
equivalent to net settlement.

Financial year 2013-14 grants comprise an Australian Phenomics Network!(APN)!grant of $74,924. Grant terms specify its use to fund IVF experimental

procedures and refinement which includes lab consumables, lab staff time, animals, and other such materials. It is for ARC trials conducted to

improve procedures associated with APN services. The grant has been recognised in its entirety upon receipt as the only condition applying to its

use;!it!is!not!subject!to!performance!measures!in!terms!of!service!delivery.!

This Standard introduces editorial and disclosure changes. There is no financial impact.

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Conceptual Framework, Materiality and
Financial Instruments.

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities [AASB 132]

The Authority has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard.

1 January 2014

1 January 2016

1 January 2014
1 January 2017

This omnibus Standard makes amendments to other Standards arising from the deletion of
references to AASB 1031 in other Standards for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
(Part B), and, defers the application of AASB 9 to 1 January 2017 (Part C). The Authority has not
yet determined the application or the potential impact of AASB 9, otherwise there is no financial
impact for Part B.

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards
1 January 2015

1 January 2018

ANIMAL RESOURCES AUTHORITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

Note 8 Interest revenue 2014 2013
$   $   

Interest revenue:
  Bankwest 20,759 11,142
  Public bank account 19,483 18,172

40,241 29,314

Note 9 Net change in fair value of biological assets 2014 2013
$   $   

Animals on Hand – at Fair Value -opening balance (2,869,448) (2,436,095)
Less: Animals on Hand – at Fair Value -closing balance 2,836,964 2,869,448

Net change in fair value (32,484) 433,353

Note 10 Employee benefits expense 2014 2013
$   $   

Salaries (a) 619,106 445,735
43,256 44,800

662,362 490,535

Note 11 Supplies and services 2014 2013
$   $   

Advertising 7,889 12,781
Insurance 42,706 41,180
Vehicle Expenses 48,705 44,249
Telephone 7,751 6,270
Accounting/Audit 89,120 70,860
Printing/Stationery 14,267 18,570
Cleaning 30,762 35,266
Materials & Equipment 20,599 14,505
Staff Training 29,141 33,367
Royalty Payments Jackson 224,907 178,155

515,847 455,203

Note 12 Other Expenses 2014 2013
$   $   

Repairs & Maintenance 160,030 132,232
Sundry 19,948 18,003
Employment on-costs (a) 232,797 227,698
Other 38,250 33,822

451,025 411,755

Note 13 Depreciation and amortisation expense 2014 2013
$   $   

Depreciation
Motor Vehicles 450 450
Plant & Equipment 114,633 113,976
Buildings 176,537 175,278
Total depreciation 291,620 289,704

Amortisation
Software 27,507 25,193
Total amortisation 27,507 25,193

Total depreciation and amortisation 319,127 314,897
Less depreciation and amortisation directly charged to overheads (236,554) (234,637)

82,573 80,260

Superannuation

(a) Includes workers' compensation insurance, payroll tax and other employment on-costs. The on-costs liability associated with the recognition of annual
and long service leave liability is included at Note 23 'Provisions'. Superannuation contributions accrued as part of the provision for leave are employee
benefits and are not included in employment on-costs.

(a) This item represents non-production staff salaries. Salaries incurred by production staff are accounted for in the Cost of Sales and Services (refer note
6). This includes Leave entitlements.

Patrick Sharp
Animal Resources Authority
For the year ended 30 June 2014
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ANIMAL RESOURCES AUTHORITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

Note 8 Interest revenue 2014 2013
$   $   

Interest revenue:
  Bankwest 20,759 11,142
  Public bank account 19,483 18,172

40,241 29,314

Note 9 Net change in fair value of biological assets 2014 2013
$   $   

Animals on Hand – at Fair Value -opening balance (2,869,448) (2,436,095)
Less: Animals on Hand – at Fair Value -closing balance 2,836,964 2,869,448

Net change in fair value (32,484) 433,353

Note 10 Employee benefits expense 2014 2013
$   $   

Salaries (a) 619,106 445,735
43,256 44,800

662,362 490,535

Note 11 Supplies and services 2014 2013
$   $   

Advertising 7,889 12,781
Insurance 42,706 41,180
Vehicle Expenses 48,705 44,249
Telephone 7,751 6,270
Accounting/Audit 89,120 70,860
Printing/Stationery 14,267 18,570
Cleaning 30,762 35,266
Materials & Equipment 20,599 14,505
Staff Training 29,141 33,367
Royalty Payments Jackson 224,907 178,155

515,847 455,203

Note 12 Other Expenses 2014 2013
$   $   

Repairs & Maintenance 160,030 132,232
Sundry 19,948 18,003
Employment on-costs (a) 232,797 227,698
Other 38,250 33,822

451,025 411,755

Note 13 Depreciation and amortisation expense 2014 2013
$   $   

Depreciation
Motor Vehicles 450 450
Plant & Equipment 114,633 113,976
Buildings 176,537 175,278
Total depreciation 291,620 289,704

Amortisation
Software 27,507 25,193
Total amortisation 27,507 25,193

Total depreciation and amortisation 319,127 314,897
Less depreciation and amortisation directly charged to overheads (236,554) (234,637)

82,573 80,260

Superannuation

(a) Includes workers' compensation insurance, payroll tax and other employment on-costs. The on-costs liability associated with the recognition of annual
and long service leave liability is included at Note 23 'Provisions'. Superannuation contributions accrued as part of the provision for leave are employee
benefits and are not included in employment on-costs.

(a) This item represents non-production staff salaries. Salaries incurred by production staff are accounted for in the Cost of Sales and Services (refer note
6). This includes Leave entitlements.

ANIMAL RESOURCES AUTHORITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

Note 14 Accommodation expense 2014 2013
$   $   

Accommodation expense 237,250 195,579
237,250 195,579

Note 15 Cash and cash equivalents 2014 2013
$   $   

Cash Management Account 562,812 908,306
Term Deposit 604,663
WA Treasury 570,945 550,941
Cheque Account 211,652 192,105
Cash on hand 300 300

1,950,372 1,651,652

Note 16 Inventories 2014 2013
$   $   

Current
Transport Boxes – at cost 59,036 102,408

59,036 102,408

  
Note 17 Biological assets 2014 2013

$   $   
Current
Animals on Hand – at Fair Value 2,836,964 2,869,448

2,836,964 2,869,448

During the year, animals on hand were valued in accordance with AASB 141, Agriculture.

The significant assumptions made in determining the animal inventory's net market value at current and previous FY ends are:

a) The expected prices of livestock are as per the price list set 1 January 2013 and a 5.5% increase from 1 January 2014.

b)  Rats and mice will be sold continuously throughout the year.

c)  Weaners will be sold at ages three to twelve weeks and breeders can be 8 to 34 weeks.

$   
Balance at 1 July 2012 2,436,095
Decrease due to sales (5,105,890)       
Increase due to birth 5,120,238
Change in fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs 419,006
Balance at 30 June 2013 2,869,448

Current 2,869,448
Non-current -

2,869,448

Balance at 1 July 2013 2,869,448
Decrease due to sales (5,647,707)       
Increase due to birth 5,661,892
Change in fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs (46,669)
Balance at 30 June 2014 2,836,964

Current 2,836,964
Non-current -

2,836,964

The June 27, 2014, animals for sale inventory consisted of 43,643 mice (2013: 41,237) and 6,049 rats (2013: 5,964). During FY 2013-14 the Authority sold 
200,610 mice (2013: 192,648) and 20,699 (2013 : 21,082)  totaling 221,309 animals (2013 : 213,730 animals). 

The Authority’s SPF biologic assets consist of 29 mouse lines (2013: 29 lines) and 10 rat lines (2013: 10 lines). Each line’s breeding animals are housed 
and maintained in specific mating ratios and weaned at three weeks of age. The weaned animals are housed with defined numbers. Weekly wean number 
totals for each line are recorded in the Strains Database. Not all weaned animals are kept for sale, as typically only one rat/mouse sex is required. Sales 
are removed from the stock cages at different ages and cage numbers adjusted on the cage label. Sales by line are invoiced through the Attache® 
accounting system. 

The financial year end inventory records the numbers of pedigree, breeder, replacement breeder stock, or weaned stock for each line.

d) Pedigree animals, breeders, replacement breeders and weaned animals (stock) are based on price lists as defined in the inventory standard operating
procedure. 

Patrick Sharp
Animal Resources Authority
For the year ended 30 June 2014
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ANIMAL RESOURCES AUTHORITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

Note 14 Accommodation expense 2014 2013
$   $   

Accommodation expense 237,250 195,579
237,250 195,579

Note 15 Cash and cash equivalents 2014 2013
$   $   

Cash Management Account 562,812 908,306
Term Deposit 604,663
WA Treasury 570,945 550,941
Cheque Account 211,652 192,105
Cash on hand 300 300

1,950,372 1,651,652

Note 16 Inventories 2014 2013
$   $   

Current
Transport Boxes – at cost 59,036 102,408

59,036 102,408

  
Note 17 Biological assets 2014 2013

$   $   
Current
Animals on Hand – at Fair Value 2,836,964 2,869,448

2,836,964 2,869,448

During the year, animals on hand were valued in accordance with AASB 141, Agriculture.

The significant assumptions made in determining the animal inventory's net market value at current and previous FY ends are:

a) The expected prices of livestock are as per the price list set 1 January 2013 and a 5.5% increase from 1 January 2014.

b)  Rats and mice will be sold continuously throughout the year.

c)  Weaners will be sold at ages three to twelve weeks and breeders can be 8 to 34 weeks.

$   
Balance at 1 July 2012 2,436,095
Decrease due to sales (5,105,890)       
Increase due to birth 5,120,238
Change in fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs 419,006
Balance at 30 June 2013 2,869,448

Current 2,869,448
Non-current -

2,869,448

Balance at 1 July 2013 2,869,448
Decrease due to sales (5,647,707)       
Increase due to birth 5,661,892
Change in fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs (46,669)
Balance at 30 June 2014 2,836,964

Current 2,836,964
Non-current -

2,836,964

The June 27, 2014, animals for sale inventory consisted of 43,643 mice (2013: 41,237) and 6,049 rats (2013: 5,964). During FY 2013-14 the Authority sold 
200,610 mice (2013: 192,648) and 20,699 (2013 : 21,082)  totaling 221,309 animals (2013 : 213,730 animals). 

The Authority’s SPF biologic assets consist of 29 mouse lines (2013: 29 lines) and 10 rat lines (2013: 10 lines). Each line’s breeding animals are housed 
and maintained in specific mating ratios and weaned at three weeks of age. The weaned animals are housed with defined numbers. Weekly wean number 
totals for each line are recorded in the Strains Database. Not all weaned animals are kept for sale, as typically only one rat/mouse sex is required. Sales 
are removed from the stock cages at different ages and cage numbers adjusted on the cage label. Sales by line are invoiced through the Attache® 
accounting system. 

The financial year end inventory records the numbers of pedigree, breeder, replacement breeder stock, or weaned stock for each line.

d) Pedigree animals, breeders, replacement breeders and weaned animals (stock) are based on price lists as defined in the inventory standard operating
procedure. 

ANIMAL RESOURCES AUTHORITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

Note 18 Receivables 2014 2013
$   $   

Current
Trade and Other Receivables 837,844 850,237
Accrued Interest 5,541 4,474

843,385 854,711

Note 19 Property, plant and equipment 2014 2013
$   $   

Buildings
At Fair Value (a) 3,530,750 3,530,750
Accumulated Depreciation (351,816)            (175,278)             
Accumulated impairment losses - -

3,178,934 3,355,472
Plant & Equipment
At Cost 1,114,405 1,105,998
Accumulated Depreciation (228,609)            (113,976)             
Accumulated impairment losses - -

885,796 992,022
Motor Vehicles
At Cost 4,500 4,500
Accumulated Depreciation (900)                   (450)                    
Accumulated impairment losses - -

3,600 4,050

Work-in-progress 22,391 -                      

Total 4,090,721 4,351,544

Reconciliations 

Motor Plant and Buildings Work in Total
Vehicles Equipment Progress

2014 $   $   $   $   $   
Carrying amount at start of period 4,050 992,020 3,355,473 - 4,351,543
Additions - 8,407 - 22,391 30,798
Transfers - - - -  -
Disposals - - - - -
Revaluation increments/(decrements) - - - - -
Depreciation (450) (114,633) (176,537) - (291,620)

Carrying amount at end of period 3,600 885,794 3,178,936 22,391 4,090,721

Motor Plant and Buildings Work in Total
Vehicles Equipment Progress

2013 $   $   $   $   $   
Carrying amount at start of period 4,500 1,100,098 3,488,001 - 4,592,600
Additions - 5,898 - 42,750 48,648
Transfers - - 42,750 (42,750) -                          
Disposals - - - - -
Revaluation increments/(decrements) - - - - -
Depreciation (450) (113,976) (175,278) - (289,704)

Carrying amount at end of period 4,050 992,020 3,355,473 - 4,351,544

(a) Buildings were revalued as at 30 June 2012 by Griffin Valuation Advisory (previously known as Australian Valuation Partners). The fair value of all
buildings, plant and equipment has been determined by reference to recent market transactions. The valuation was made in accordance with a regular
policy of revaluation every three years.

Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of property, plant, equipment and vehicles at the beginning and end of the reporting period are set out below.

Patrick Sharp
Animal Resources Authority
For the year ended 30 June 2014
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Note 18 Receivables 2014 2013
$   $   

Current
Trade and Other Receivables 837,844 850,237
Accrued Interest 5,541 4,474

843,385 854,711

Note 19 Property, plant and equipment 2014 2013
$   $   

Buildings
At Fair Value (a) 3,530,750 3,530,750
Accumulated Depreciation (351,816)            (175,278)             
Accumulated impairment losses - -

3,178,934 3,355,472
Plant & Equipment
At Cost 1,114,405 1,105,998
Accumulated Depreciation (228,609)            (113,976)             
Accumulated impairment losses - -

885,796 992,022
Motor Vehicles
At Cost 4,500 4,500
Accumulated Depreciation (900)                   (450)                    
Accumulated impairment losses - -

3,600 4,050

Work-in-progress 22,391 -                      

Total 4,090,721 4,351,544

Reconciliations 

Motor Plant and Buildings Work in Total
Vehicles Equipment Progress

2014 $   $   $   $   $   
Carrying amount at start of period 4,050 992,020 3,355,473 - 4,351,543
Additions - 8,407 - 22,391 30,798
Transfers - - - -  -
Disposals - - - - -
Revaluation increments/(decrements) - - - - -
Depreciation (450) (114,633) (176,537) - (291,620)

Carrying amount at end of period 3,600 885,794 3,178,936 22,391 4,090,721

Motor Plant and Buildings Work in Total
Vehicles Equipment Progress

2013 $   $   $   $   $   
Carrying amount at start of period 4,500 1,100,098 3,488,001 - 4,592,600
Additions - 5,898 - 42,750 48,648
Transfers - - 42,750 (42,750) -                          
Disposals - - - - -
Revaluation increments/(decrements) - - - - -
Depreciation (450) (113,976) (175,278) - (289,704)

Carrying amount at end of period 4,050 992,020 3,355,473 - 4,351,544

(a) Buildings were revalued as at 30 June 2012 by Griffin Valuation Advisory (previously known as Australian Valuation Partners). The fair value of all
buildings, plant and equipment has been determined by reference to recent market transactions. The valuation was made in accordance with a regular
policy of revaluation every three years.

Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of property, plant, equipment and vehicles at the beginning and end of the reporting period are set out below.

ANIMAL RESOURCES AUTHORITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

Note 20 Fair value measurements

Assets measured at fair value: Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value 
At end of period

2014 $   $   $   $   
Buildings (Note 19) -                       -                         3,178,936 3,178,936

-                       -                         3,178,936 3,178,936

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 or 3 during the period.

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) Buildings
2014 $   
Fair Value at the start of the period 3,355,471
Additons -
Disposals -
Revaluation increments/(decrements) recognised in Other Comprehensive Income -
Depreciation expense (176,537)
Fair Value at the end of the period 3,178,934

Valuation processes

There were no changes in valuation techniques during the period.

Significant Level 3 inputs used by the Animal Resources Authority are derived and evaluated as follows:

Historical cost per square metre floor area (m2)

Consumed economic benefit / obsoloscence of asset
These are estimated by Griffin Valuation Advisory (previously known as Australian Valuation Partners).

Information about significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) in fair value measurements

Description and fair 
value as at 30 June 
2014

Valuation 
Technique(s)

Unobservable 
units

Range of 
unobservable 
inputs 
(weighted 
average)

Relationship of 
unobservable inputs 
to fair value

Buildings
3,178,936$                     Depreciated 

Replacement 
cost

Consumed 
economic benefit 
/ obsolescence 
of asset

3.3 to 10% per 
year (5.49% per 
year)

Greater consumption 
of economic benefit or 
increased 
obsolesence lowers 
fair value

Historical cost $495 per m2 Higher historical
per square  
meter floor area 
(m2)

cost per m2 increases 
fair value

Fair value for existing use specialised buildings is determined by reference to the cost of replacing the remaining future economic benefits embodied in the
asset, i.e. the depreciated replacement cost. Depreciated replacement cost is the current replacement cost of an asset less accumulated depreciation
calculated on the basis of such cost to reflect the already consumed or expired economic benefit, or obsolescence, and optimisation (where applicable) of
the asset. Current replacement cost is generally determined by reference to the market-observable replacement cost of a substitute asset of comparable
utility and the gross project size specifications.

The costs of constructing specialised buildings with similar utility are extracted from financial records of the Animal Resources Authority, then indexed by 
movements in CPI

ANIMAL RESOURCES AUTHORITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

Note 21 Intangible assets 2014 2013
$   $   

Computer software
At cost 78,607 78,607
Additions 5,400 -                          
Work in progress 8,505                 -                          
Accumulated amortisation (52,700)              (25,193)               

39,812 53,414

Reconciliation:
Carrying amount at start of period 53,414 67,696
Additions 5,400 10,911
Work in progress 8,505 -
Transfers - -
Amortisation expense (27,507)              (25,193)               
Carrying amount at end of period 39,812 53,414

Note 22 Impairment of assets

There were no indications of impairment to Property, plant and equipment at 30 June 2014.

All surplus assets at 30 June 2014 have either been classified as assets held for sale or written-off.

Note 23 Payables 2014 2013
$   $   

Current
Trade Payables 265,778 235,293
GST Payable 115,468 125,273
Accrued Expenses 552,840 321,364
Accrued Salaries 13,830 2,332
Payable to Commonwealth -                         2,737

947,916 686,999

The Authority held no goodwill or intangible assets with an indefinite useful life during the reporting period and at the end of the reporting period there were
no intangible assets not yet available for use.

Patrick Sharp
Animal Resources Authority
For the year ended 30 June 2014
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Note 21 Intangible assets 2014 2013
$   $   

Computer software
At cost 78,607 78,607
Additions 5,400 -                          
Work in progress 8,505                 -                          
Accumulated amortisation (52,700)              (25,193)               

39,812 53,414

Reconciliation:
Carrying amount at start of period 53,414 67,696
Additions 5,400 10,911
Work in progress 8,505 -
Transfers - -
Amortisation expense (27,507)              (25,193)               
Carrying amount at end of period 39,812 53,414

Note 22 Impairment of assets

There were no indications of impairment to Property, plant and equipment at 30 June 2014.

All surplus assets at 30 June 2014 have either been classified as assets held for sale or written-off.

Note 23 Payables 2014 2013
$   $   

Current
Trade Payables 265,778 235,293
GST Payable 115,468 125,273
Accrued Expenses 552,840 321,364
Accrued Salaries 13,830 2,332
Payable to Commonwealth -                         2,737

947,916 686,999

The Authority held no goodwill or intangible assets with an indefinite useful life during the reporting period and at the end of the reporting period there were
no intangible assets not yet available for use.

ANIMAL RESOURCES AUTHORITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

Note 24 Provisions 2014 2013
$   $   

Current:
Employee benefits provision
Annual Leave (a) 122,667 133,480
Long Service Leave (b) 488,033 297,408

610,700 430,888
Other provisions
Employment On-costs (c) 28,516 25,013

28,516 25,013

639,216 455,901

Non-current:
Employee benefits provision
Long Service Leave (b) 132,778 246,803

132,778 246,803

Other provisions
Employment On-costs (c) 6,191 14,983

6,191 14,983

138,969 261,786

Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period 112,133 133,480
More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period 10,534 -                      

122,667 133,480

Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period 107,445 82,877
More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period 513,366 461,334

620,811 544,211

Movement in employment on-cost provision 2014 2013
$   $   

Carrying amount at start of period 39,996 36,118
Additional / (reversals of) provisions recognised (5,289) (216,383)
Payments/other sacrifices of economic benefits -                         220,084
Unwinding of the discount -                         177
Carrying amount at end of period 34,707 39,996

Note 25 Equity

2014 2013
Reserves $   $   
Asset revaluation surplus
Balance at start of period 1,690,936 1,690,936
Net revaluation increments/(decrements):
  Motor Vehicles - -
  Plant and Equipment - -
  Buildings - -
Balance at end of period 1,690,936 1,690,936

Retained earnings
Balance at start of period 6,787,555 6,526,943
Result for the period (384,302) 260,612
Balance at end of period 6,403,253 6,787,555

Total equity at end of period 8,094,189 8,478,491

The Western Australian Government holds the equity interest in the Authority on behalf of the community. Equity represents the residual interest in the net

assets of the Authority.  The asset revaluation surplus represents that portion of equity resulting from the revaluation of non-current assets.

(b) Long service leave liabilities have been classified as current where there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the
reporting period. Assessments indicate the actual settlement of liabilities will occur as follows:

(d) Defined benefit superannuation plans - The Authority has no liability or expense under AASB 119 arising from the Pension Scheme or West State
Super.

(c) The settlement of of annual and long service leave liabilities gives rise to the payment of employment on-costs including workers compensation
insurance. The provision is measured at the present value of expected future payments. The associated expense, apart from the unwinding of the discount
(finance cost) is included at Note 11 'Supplies and Services'.

(a) Annual leave liabilities have been classified as current as there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the end of the

reporting period. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:

Patrick Sharp
Animal Resources Authority
For the year ended 30 June 2014
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Note 24 Provisions 2014 2013
$   $   

Current:
Employee benefits provision
Annual Leave (a) 122,667 133,480
Long Service Leave (b) 488,033 297,408

610,700 430,888
Other provisions
Employment On-costs (c) 28,516 25,013

28,516 25,013

639,216 455,901

Non-current:
Employee benefits provision
Long Service Leave (b) 132,778 246,803

132,778 246,803

Other provisions
Employment On-costs (c) 6,191 14,983

6,191 14,983

138,969 261,786

Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period 112,133 133,480
More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period 10,534 -                      

122,667 133,480

Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period 107,445 82,877
More than 12 months after the end of the reporting period 513,366 461,334

620,811 544,211

Movement in employment on-cost provision 2014 2013
$   $   

Carrying amount at start of period 39,996 36,118
Additional / (reversals of) provisions recognised (5,289) (216,383)
Payments/other sacrifices of economic benefits -                         220,084
Unwinding of the discount -                         177
Carrying amount at end of period 34,707 39,996

Note 25 Equity

2014 2013
Reserves $   $   
Asset revaluation surplus
Balance at start of period 1,690,936 1,690,936
Net revaluation increments/(decrements):
  Motor Vehicles - -
  Plant and Equipment - -
  Buildings - -
Balance at end of period 1,690,936 1,690,936

Retained earnings
Balance at start of period 6,787,555 6,526,943
Result for the period (384,302) 260,612
Balance at end of period 6,403,253 6,787,555

Total equity at end of period 8,094,189 8,478,491

The Western Australian Government holds the equity interest in the Authority on behalf of the community. Equity represents the residual interest in the net

assets of the Authority.  The asset revaluation surplus represents that portion of equity resulting from the revaluation of non-current assets.

(b) Long service leave liabilities have been classified as current where there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the
reporting period. Assessments indicate the actual settlement of liabilities will occur as follows:

(d) Defined benefit superannuation plans - The Authority has no liability or expense under AASB 119 arising from the Pension Scheme or West State
Super.

(c) The settlement of of annual and long service leave liabilities gives rise to the payment of employment on-costs including workers compensation
insurance. The provision is measured at the present value of expected future payments. The associated expense, apart from the unwinding of the discount
(finance cost) is included at Note 11 'Supplies and Services'.

(a) Annual leave liabilities have been classified as current as there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the end of the

reporting period. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:

ANIMAL RESOURCES AUTHORITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

Note 26 Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows

Reconciliation of cash

2014 2013
$   $   

Cash and cash equivalents 1,950,372 1,651,652
1,950,372 1,651,652

Reconciliation of profit to net cash flows provided by/(used in) operating activities 2014 2013
$   $   

Profit (384,302) 260,612

Non-cash items:
Depreciation andamortisation expense 319,127 314,897
Net (gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment - -

(Increase)/decrease in assets:
Inventories 43,372 22,642
Biological assets 32,484 (433,353)
Trade and Other Receivables (a) 12,393 99,380
Accrued interest (1,067) 1,744
Other current assets -                         70,000

Increase/(decrease) in liabilities:
Payables (a) 270,723 124,290
Provisions 60,498 70,398
Net GST receipts/(payments) (b) -                         -                          
Change in GST receivables/payables ( c ) (9,805) 9,625

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 343,423 540,235

Note 27 Commitments

The commitments below are inclusive of GST where relevant.

Non-cancellable Operating lease commitments 2014 2013
$   $   

Within 1 year 299,451 272,740
973,842 965,303

1,273,293 1,238,043

The leases comprise: 
Non-cancellable vehicle operating leases of 30 month and 36 month terms with rent payable monthly.
Ground lease for site occupied by the Authority, provided by Murdoch University.

Note 28 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

(a) Note that the Australian Taxation Office (ATO) receivable/payable in respect of GST and the receivable/payable in respect of the sale/purchase of property, plant and equipment are

not included in these items as they do not form part of the reconciling items.

(c) This reverses out the GST in receivables and payables.

There were no contingent assets or liabilities that occurred during this financial year  which would affect this financial statement or disclosure.

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years

At the end of the reporting period, the Authority had fully drawn on all financing facilities, details of which are disclosed in the financial statements.

Commitments for minimum lease payments are payable as follows:

(b) This is the net GST paid/received, i.e. cash transactions.

Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows is reconciled to the related items in the Statement of Financial Position as
follows:

ANIMAL RESOURCES AUTHORITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

Note 29 Events occurring after the end of the reporting period

There were no events that occurred after the end of the period which would affect these financial statements or disclosure.

Note 30 Explanatory statement

2014 2014
Estimate Actual Variances Variances

$ $ $ %
Revenue
Provision of services 1,407,835 972,766 (435,069) -31%
Commonwealth grants and contributions -                           74,924 74,924 100%
Interest revenue 17,724 40,241 22,517 127%
Other revenue 5,000 21,643 16,643 333%

Gains
Gain on fair value of biological assets 133,000 32,484 (100,516) -76%

Expenses
Cost of sales and services 6,950,398 6,703,653 (246,745) -4%
Employee benefits expense 692,168 662,362 (29,806) -4%
Supplies and services 657,519 515,847 (141,672) -22%
Other Expenses 433,655 451,025 17,370 4%

Provision of Services

Commonwealth grants and contributions

Interest Revenue

Other Revenue
More employees took advantage of the traineeship program than were budgeted.

Net change in fair value of biological assets

Cost of sales and services

Employee benefits expense
The Employee Benefits Expense was unexpectedly reduced as one staff member went on leave without pay.

Supplies and services

Other Expenses

Virtually every component Provision of Services were negatively impacted compared to the budget. As a result animal Maintenance and Procedures, 
including cryopreservation, were less than budgeted. In addition fewer customers requested cryopreservation.

The autoclave (~ $450K )was expected to be purchased in September 2013. As this matter was delayed, the interest earned was higher. Furthermore, 
from March 2014, the ARA put $500K in a higher interest bearing Term deposit.

Following last financial year's increase in animals on hand, the Budget accounted for an increase in biological assets. However, this was actually reduced 
by better breeding colony management.

Veterinary director was not employed as expected which brought down the Production Salaries. Further Depreciation on the budget was lower than 
expected as the autoclave was not purchased and Quality control expenses had reduced due to a change of supplier. The movement in non animal 
inventory was also much lower than expected. 

The Budget did not account for the relocation costs of the Vet Pathologist in this financial year

Supplies and Services were below this FY’s budget mainly due to cost cutting measures put in place to reduce the overall expenses. Further due to the 
lower movement in non animal inventory than expected, this had also further impacted the Supplies and Services costs this year.

The ARA did not know about the grant when the budget was prepared (refer to note 7).        

Significant variations between estimate and actual for 2014

Significant variations between estimates and actual results for 2014 and between the actual results for 2013 and 2014 are shown below. Significant
variations are considered to be those greater than 10% or $15,000.

Patrick Sharp
Animal Resources Authority
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Note 29 Events occurring after the end of the reporting period

There were no events that occurred after the end of the period which would affect these financial statements or disclosure.

Note 30 Explanatory statement

2014 2014
Estimate Actual Variances Variances

$ $ $ %
Revenue
Provision of services 1,407,835 972,766 (435,069) -31%
Commonwealth grants and contributions -                           74,924 74,924 100%
Interest revenue 17,724 40,241 22,517 127%
Other revenue 5,000 21,643 16,643 333%

Gains
Gain on fair value of biological assets 133,000 32,484 (100,516) -76%

Expenses
Cost of sales and services 6,950,398 6,703,653 (246,745) -4%
Employee benefits expense 692,168 662,362 (29,806) -4%
Supplies and services 657,519 515,847 (141,672) -22%
Other Expenses 433,655 451,025 17,370 4%

Provision of Services

Commonwealth grants and contributions

Interest Revenue

Other Revenue
More employees took advantage of the traineeship program than were budgeted.

Net change in fair value of biological assets

Cost of sales and services

Employee benefits expense
The Employee Benefits Expense was unexpectedly reduced as one staff member went on leave without pay.

Supplies and services

Other Expenses

Virtually every component Provision of Services were negatively impacted compared to the budget. As a result animal Maintenance and Procedures, 
including cryopreservation, were less than budgeted. In addition fewer customers requested cryopreservation.

The autoclave (~ $450K )was expected to be purchased in September 2013. As this matter was delayed, the interest earned was higher. Furthermore, 
from March 2014, the ARA put $500K in a higher interest bearing Term deposit.

Following last financial year's increase in animals on hand, the Budget accounted for an increase in biological assets. However, this was actually reduced 
by better breeding colony management.

Veterinary director was not employed as expected which brought down the Production Salaries. Further Depreciation on the budget was lower than 
expected as the autoclave was not purchased and Quality control expenses had reduced due to a change of supplier. The movement in non animal 
inventory was also much lower than expected. 

The Budget did not account for the relocation costs of the Vet Pathologist in this financial year

Supplies and Services were below this FY’s budget mainly due to cost cutting measures put in place to reduce the overall expenses. Further due to the 
lower movement in non animal inventory than expected, this had also further impacted the Supplies and Services costs this year.

The ARA did not know about the grant when the budget was prepared (refer to note 7).        

Significant variations between estimate and actual for 2014

Significant variations between estimates and actual results for 2014 and between the actual results for 2013 and 2014 are shown below. Significant
variations are considered to be those greater than 10% or $15,000.

ANIMAL RESOURCES AUTHORITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

Significant variances between actual results for 2014 and 2013

2014 2013
Actual Actual Variances Variances

$ $ $ %
Income
Sales 7,191,318 6,519,921 671,397 10%
Provision of services 972,766 1,283,793 (311,027) -24%
Commonwealth grants and contributions 74,924 -                       74,924 100%
Interest revenue 40,241 29,314 10,927 37%
Other revenue 21,643 48,483 (26,840) -55%

Gains
Gain on fair value of biological assets 32,484 433,353 (400,869) -93%

Expense
Cost of sales and services 6,703,653 6,420,920 282,733 4%
Employee benefits expense 662,362 490,535 171,827 35%
Accommodation expense 237,250 195,579 41,671 21%
Supplies and services 515,847 455,203 60,644 13%
Other Expenses 451,025 411,755 39,270 10%

Sales 

Provision for Services

Interest Revenue

Other Revenue

Net change in fair value of biological assets

Employee benefits 

Accommodation Expense

Supplies and services

More responsible cash management and the postponed autoclave purchase resulted in increased Interest Revenue over budget estimates and last FY. 

Other Revenue principally increased from more employees taking advantage of the traineeship program (RTO Cert III program) resulting in higher 
Traineeship Income.

Sales were 10% higher in this FY due to stronger than anticipated interstate sales. With the exception of inbred rats, all other animal sales were higher 
than last financial year

The Accommodation Expense, although in line with budgetary expectations, is higher than last FY due to the 2012 contract terms which is guiding our 
accrual. 

For more than a year there had been a part-time, acting CEO. Last financial year, it was the first year of a full time CEO in over a year and this accounted 
for the Employee Benefits Expense increase.                                                                           

Compared to the last FY, there was less Import/Cryopreservation revenue, and in turn less Maintenance Fees; Other revenue was impacted as revenue 
from the CSL colony was shifted from ‘Other’ to 'Outbred Mice'

Lower biologic assets resulted from better breeding colony management without incurring customer shortages. Breeding colony management had its 
greatest impact on Balb/c nude and SCID mice with over 800 fewer breeding animals, and various rat breeders with 275 fewer animals. The impact of 
these animal reductions were approximately A$ 185,000

Supplies and Services were 13% higher than last FY. JAX royalty payment and increased computing costs were responsible for the majority of these 
expenses. The JAX payment is a flow through from increased JAX mouse sales

Patrick Sharp
Animal Resources Authority
For the year ended 30 June 2014
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ANIMAL RESOURCES AUTHORITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

Significant variances between actual results for 2014 and 2013
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Actual Actual Variances Variances
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Income
Sales 7,191,318 6,519,921 671,397 10%
Provision of services 972,766 1,283,793 (311,027) -24%
Commonwealth grants and contributions 74,924 -                       74,924 100%
Interest revenue 40,241 29,314 10,927 37%
Other revenue 21,643 48,483 (26,840) -55%

Gains
Gain on fair value of biological assets 32,484 433,353 (400,869) -93%

Expense
Cost of sales and services 6,703,653 6,420,920 282,733 4%
Employee benefits expense 662,362 490,535 171,827 35%
Accommodation expense 237,250 195,579 41,671 21%
Supplies and services 515,847 455,203 60,644 13%
Other Expenses 451,025 411,755 39,270 10%
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Provision for Services

Interest Revenue

Other Revenue

Net change in fair value of biological assets

Employee benefits 

Accommodation Expense

Supplies and services

More responsible cash management and the postponed autoclave purchase resulted in increased Interest Revenue over budget estimates and last FY. 

Other Revenue principally increased from more employees taking advantage of the traineeship program (RTO Cert III program) resulting in higher 
Traineeship Income.

Sales were 10% higher in this FY due to stronger than anticipated interstate sales. With the exception of inbred rats, all other animal sales were higher 
than last financial year

The Accommodation Expense, although in line with budgetary expectations, is higher than last FY due to the 2012 contract terms which is guiding our 
accrual. 

For more than a year there had been a part-time, acting CEO. Last financial year, it was the first year of a full time CEO in over a year and this accounted 
for the Employee Benefits Expense increase.                                                                           

Compared to the last FY, there was less Import/Cryopreservation revenue, and in turn less Maintenance Fees; Other revenue was impacted as revenue 
from the CSL colony was shifted from ‘Other’ to 'Outbred Mice'

Lower biologic assets resulted from better breeding colony management without incurring customer shortages. Breeding colony management had its 
greatest impact on Balb/c nude and SCID mice with over 800 fewer breeding animals, and various rat breeders with 275 fewer animals. The impact of 
these animal reductions were approximately A$ 185,000

Supplies and Services were 13% higher than last FY. JAX royalty payment and increased computing costs were responsible for the majority of these 
expenses. The JAX payment is a flow through from increased JAX mouse sales

ANIMAL RESOURCES AUTHORITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

Note 31 Financial instruments

(a) Financial risk management objectives and policies

Credit risk

Liquidity risk

Market Risk

(b) Categories of financial instruments

2014 2013
Financial Assets $   $   
Cash and cash equivalents 1,950,372 1,651,652
Receivables 843,385 854,711

2014 2013
Financial Liabilities $   $   
Payables (a) 832,448 561,726

  
(c) Financial instrument disclosures

Credit Risk 

Financial instruments held by the Authority are cash and cash equivalents, receivables and payables. The Authority has limited exposure to financial risks.
The Authority's overall risk management program focuses on managing the risks identified below.

The Authority's objective is to maintain continuity of funding. The Authority has appropriate procedures to manage cash flows by monitoring forecast cash
flows to ensure that sufficient funds are available to meet its commitments.

(a) The amount of Payables excludes GST payable to the ATO (statutory payable).

The Authority does not hold any collateral as security or other credit enhancement relating to the financial assets it holds.

The carrying amounts of each of the following categories of financial assets and financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period are:

The following table discloses the Authority’s maximum exposure to credit risk and the ageing analysis of financial assets. The Authority’s maximum 
exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the carrying amount of financial assets as shown below. The table is based on information 
provided to senior management of the Authority.

Credit risk arises when there is the possibility of the Authority’s receivables defaulting on their contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the
Authority.

The Authority only has interest rate risk associated with bank deposits. No other risks are relevent.

Liquidity risk arises when the Authority is unable to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Authority is exposed to liquidity risk through its
trading in the normal course of business.

The Authority has policies in place to ensure that sales of products and services are made to customers with an appropriate credit history. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Authority’s exposure to bad debts is minimal. At the end of the reporting
period there were no significant concentrations of credit risk.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the end of the reporting period in relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the gross
carrying amount of those assets inclusive of any allowance for impairment, as shown in the table at Note 30(c) ‘Financial Instrument Disclosures’ and Note
18 ‘Receivables’.

ANIMAL RESOURCES AUTHORITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

Ageing analysis of financial assets
Past due but not impaired

Carrying Not past due
Amount and not 

impaired Up to 1 month 1-3 months 3-12 months
$ $ $ $ $

2014
Cash Assets 211,952 211,952 -                     -                -                      
Receivables 843,385 724,741 -                     118,543 101
Cash Management Acc 562,812 562,812 -                     -                -                      
Term Deposit 604,663 604,663 -                     -                -                      
WA Treasury 570,945 604,663 -                     -                -                      

2,793,757 2,708,831 -                     118,543 101

2013
Cash Assets 192,405 192,405 -                     -                -                      
Receivables 854,711 700,355 -                     147,518 6,838
Cash Management Acc 908,306 908,306 -                     -                -                      
WA Treasury 550,941 550,941 -                     -                -                      

2,506,363 2,352,007 -                     147,518 6,838

Weighted Carrying Fixed Variable Non- Nominal
Average Amount Interest Interest Interest Amount Up to
Effective Rate Rate Bearing  1 month 1-3 months
Interest 
Rate (%) $ $ $ $ $ $ $

2014
Financial Assets
Cash Assets 211,952 -               -                       211,952 211,952 211,952         -                      
Receivables 843,385 -               -                       843,385 843,385 843,385         -                      
Cash Management 
Acc 2.3 562,812 -               562,812 -                   562,812 562,812         -                      
Term deposit 3.7 604,663 604,663 -                       -                   604,663 -                    604,663              
WA Treasury 2.8 570,945 570,945 -                   570,945 -                    570,945              

2,793,757 604,663 1,133,757 1,055,337 2,793,757 1,618,149 1,175,608

Financial Liabilities
Payables (a) 832,448 -               -                       832,448 832,448 832,448         -                      

832,448 -               -                       832,448 832,448 832,448 -                      
2013
Financial Assets
Cash Assets 192,405 -               -                       192,405 192,405 192,405         -                      
Receivables 854,711 -               -                       854,711 854,711 854,711         -                      
Cash Management 
Acc 2.4 908,306 -               908,306 -                   908,306 908,306         -                      
WA Treasury 3.7 550,941 -               550,941 -                   550,941 550,941         -                      

2,506,363 -               1,459,247 1,047,116 2,506,363 2,506,363 -                      
Financial Liabilities
Payables (a) 561,726 -               -                       561,726 561,726 561,726         -                      

561,726 -               -                       561,726 561,726 561,726 -                      

(a) The amount of payables measured at the amortised cost excludes GST payable to the ATO (statutory payable)

Interest rate exposure

Liquidity risk and interest rate exposure

The following table details the Authority's interest rate exposure and the contractual maturity analysis of the financial assets and financial liabilities.  The 
maturity analysis section includes interest and principal cash flows.  The interest rate exposure section analyses only the carrying amounts of each item

Maturity dates

Interest rate exposure and maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities

Patrick Sharp
Animal Resources Authority
For the year ended 30 June 2014
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Ageing analysis of financial assets
Past due but not impaired

Carrying Not past due
Amount and not 

impaired Up to 1 month 1-3 months 3-12 months
$ $ $ $ $

2014
Cash Assets 211,952 211,952 -                     -                -                      
Receivables 843,385 724,741 -                     118,543 101
Cash Management Acc 562,812 562,812 -                     -                -                      
Term Deposit 604,663 604,663 -                     -                -                      
WA Treasury 570,945 604,663 -                     -                -                      

2,793,757 2,708,831 -                     118,543 101

2013
Cash Assets 192,405 192,405 -                     -                -                      
Receivables 854,711 700,355 -                     147,518 6,838
Cash Management Acc 908,306 908,306 -                     -                -                      
WA Treasury 550,941 550,941 -                     -                -                      

2,506,363 2,352,007 -                     147,518 6,838

Weighted Carrying Fixed Variable Non- Nominal
Average Amount Interest Interest Interest Amount Up to
Effective Rate Rate Bearing  1 month 1-3 months
Interest 
Rate (%) $ $ $ $ $ $ $

2014
Financial Assets
Cash Assets 211,952 -               -                       211,952 211,952 211,952         -                      
Receivables 843,385 -               -                       843,385 843,385 843,385         -                      
Cash Management 
Acc 2.3 562,812 -               562,812 -                   562,812 562,812         -                      
Term deposit 3.7 604,663 604,663 -                       -                   604,663 -                    604,663              
WA Treasury 2.8 570,945 570,945 -                   570,945 -                    570,945              

2,793,757 604,663 1,133,757 1,055,337 2,793,757 1,618,149 1,175,608

Financial Liabilities
Payables (a) 832,448 -               -                       832,448 832,448 832,448         -                      

832,448 -               -                       832,448 832,448 832,448 -                      
2013
Financial Assets
Cash Assets 192,405 -               -                       192,405 192,405 192,405         -                      
Receivables 854,711 -               -                       854,711 854,711 854,711         -                      
Cash Management 
Acc 2.4 908,306 -               908,306 -                   908,306 908,306         -                      
WA Treasury 3.7 550,941 -               550,941 -                   550,941 550,941         -                      

2,506,363 -               1,459,247 1,047,116 2,506,363 2,506,363 -                      
Financial Liabilities
Payables (a) 561,726 -               -                       561,726 561,726 561,726         -                      

561,726 -               -                       561,726 561,726 561,726 -                      

(a) The amount of payables measured at the amortised cost excludes GST payable to the ATO (statutory payable)

Interest rate exposure

Liquidity risk and interest rate exposure

The following table details the Authority's interest rate exposure and the contractual maturity analysis of the financial assets and financial liabilities.  The 
maturity analysis section includes interest and principal cash flows.  The interest rate exposure section analyses only the carrying amounts of each item

Maturity dates

Interest rate exposure and maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities

ANIMAL RESOURCES AUTHORITY 
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Interest rate sensitivity analysis

Carrying
Amount Profit Equity Profit Equity

2014 $ $ $ $ $

Financial Assets
Cash Assets 211,952 -                       -                   -                     -                
Receivables 843,385 -                       -                   -                     -                
Cash Management Acc 562,812 (5,628) (5,628) 5,628 5,628
Term deposit 604,663 (6,047) (6,047) 6,047 6,047
WA Treasury 570,945 (5,709) (5,709) 5,709 5,709

Financial Liabilities
Payables 832,448 -                       -                   -                     -                
Total increase/(Decrease) (17,384) (17,384) 17,384 17,384

Carrying
Amount Profit Equity Profit Equity

2013 $ $ $ $ $

Financial Assets
Cash Assets 192,405 -                       -                   -                     -                
Receivables 854,711 -                       -                   -                     -                
Cash Management Acc 908,306 (9,083) (9,083) 9,083 9,083
WA Treasury 550,941 (5,509) (5,509) 5,509 5,509

Financial Liabilities
Payables 561,726 -                       -                   -                     -                
Total increase/(Decrease) (14,592) (14,592) 14,592 14,592

Fair Values

Note 32 Remuneration of members of the accountable authority and senior officers

Remuneration of members of the accountable authority

2014 2013
$ 0-10,000 8 8

$   $   
Base remuneration 4,380 5,140
Other benefits -                     -                      
Total remuneration of members of the accountable authority 4,380 5,140

There is no superannuation expense incurred by the Authority in respect of members of the accountable authority.

Remuneration of senior officers

$ 2014 2013
40,001 - 50,000 -                     1
60,001 - 70,000 -                     1
140,001 -  150,000 -                     1
150,001 -160,000 1 -                      
180,001 - 190,000 1 -                      

$   $   
Base remuneration and superannuation 313,313 236,723
Annual leave and long service leave accruals 8,685 7,932
Other benefits 17,416 13,324
The total remuneration of senior officers 339,414 257,979

No senior officers are members of the Pension Scheme.

Note 33 Remuneration of auditor 2014 2013
$   $   

Remuneration paid or payable to the Auditor General in respect of the 
audit for the current financial year is as follows:

The total remuneration includes the superannuation expense incurred by the Authority in respect of senior officers other than senior officers reported as
members of the accountable authority.

+100 basis points

The number of senior officers other than senior officers reported as members of the Accountable Authority, whose total of fees, salaries and other benefits
for the financial year, fall within the following bands are:

+100 basis points

All financial assets and liabilities recognised in the Statement of Financial Position, whether they are carried at cost or fair value, are recognised at

amounts that represent a reasonable approximation of fair value unless otherwise stated in the applicable notes.

-100 basis points

The number of members of the accountable authority, whose total of fees, salaries, superannuation, non-monetary benefits and other benefits for the
financial year, fall within the following bands are:

-100 basis points

The following table represents a summary of the interest rate sensitivity of the Authority's financial assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period
on the profit for the period and equity for a 1% change in interest rates. It is assumed that the change in interest rates is held constant throughout the
reporting period.
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Interest rate sensitivity analysis

Carrying
Amount Profit Equity Profit Equity

2014 $ $ $ $ $

Financial Assets
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Cash Management Acc 562,812 (5,628) (5,628) 5,628 5,628
Term deposit 604,663 (6,047) (6,047) 6,047 6,047
WA Treasury 570,945 (5,709) (5,709) 5,709 5,709

Financial Liabilities
Payables 832,448 -                       -                   -                     -                
Total increase/(Decrease) (17,384) (17,384) 17,384 17,384

Carrying
Amount Profit Equity Profit Equity

2013 $ $ $ $ $

Financial Assets
Cash Assets 192,405 -                       -                   -                     -                
Receivables 854,711 -                       -                   -                     -                
Cash Management Acc 908,306 (9,083) (9,083) 9,083 9,083
WA Treasury 550,941 (5,509) (5,509) 5,509 5,509

Financial Liabilities
Payables 561,726 -                       -                   -                     -                
Total increase/(Decrease) (14,592) (14,592) 14,592 14,592

Fair Values

Note 32 Remuneration of members of the accountable authority and senior officers

Remuneration of members of the accountable authority

2014 2013
$ 0-10,000 8 8

$   $   
Base remuneration 4,380 5,140
Other benefits -                     -                      
Total remuneration of members of the accountable authority 4,380 5,140

There is no superannuation expense incurred by the Authority in respect of members of the accountable authority.

Remuneration of senior officers

$ 2014 2013
40,001 - 50,000 -                     1
60,001 - 70,000 -                     1
140,001 -  150,000 -                     1
150,001 -160,000 1 -                      
180,001 - 190,000 1 -                      

$   $   
Base remuneration and superannuation 313,313 236,723
Annual leave and long service leave accruals 8,685 7,932
Other benefits 17,416 13,324
The total remuneration of senior officers 339,414 257,979

No senior officers are members of the Pension Scheme.

Note 33 Remuneration of auditor 2014 2013
$   $   

Remuneration paid or payable to the Auditor General in respect of the 
audit for the current financial year is as follows:

The total remuneration includes the superannuation expense incurred by the Authority in respect of senior officers other than senior officers reported as
members of the accountable authority.

+100 basis points

The number of senior officers other than senior officers reported as members of the Accountable Authority, whose total of fees, salaries and other benefits
for the financial year, fall within the following bands are:

+100 basis points

All financial assets and liabilities recognised in the Statement of Financial Position, whether they are carried at cost or fair value, are recognised at

amounts that represent a reasonable approximation of fair value unless otherwise stated in the applicable notes.

-100 basis points

The number of members of the accountable authority, whose total of fees, salaries, superannuation, non-monetary benefits and other benefits for the
financial year, fall within the following bands are:

-100 basis points

The following table represents a summary of the interest rate sensitivity of the Authority's financial assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period
on the profit for the period and equity for a 1% change in interest rates. It is assumed that the change in interest rates is held constant throughout the
reporting period.
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Interest rate sensitivity analysis

Carrying
Amount Profit Equity Profit Equity

2014 $ $ $ $ $

Financial Assets
Cash Assets 211,952 -                       -                   -                     -                
Receivables 843,385 -                       -                   -                     -                
Cash Management Acc 562,812 (5,628) (5,628) 5,628 5,628
Term deposit 604,663 (6,047) (6,047) 6,047 6,047
WA Treasury 570,945 (5,709) (5,709) 5,709 5,709

Financial Liabilities
Payables 832,448 -                       -                   -                     -                
Total increase/(Decrease) (17,384) (17,384) 17,384 17,384

Carrying
Amount Profit Equity Profit Equity

2013 $ $ $ $ $

Financial Assets
Cash Assets 192,405 -                       -                   -                     -                
Receivables 854,711 -                       -                   -                     -                
Cash Management Acc 908,306 (9,083) (9,083) 9,083 9,083
WA Treasury 550,941 (5,509) (5,509) 5,509 5,509

Financial Liabilities
Payables 561,726 -                       -                   -                     -                
Total increase/(Decrease) (14,592) (14,592) 14,592 14,592

Fair Values

Note 32 Remuneration of members of the accountable authority and senior officers

Remuneration of members of the accountable authority

2014 2013
$ 0-10,000 8 8

$   $   
Base remuneration 4,380 5,140
Other benefits -                     -                      
Total remuneration of members of the accountable authority 4,380 5,140

There is no superannuation expense incurred by the Authority in respect of members of the accountable authority.

Remuneration of senior officers

$ 2014 2013
40,001 - 50,000 -                     1
60,001 - 70,000 -                     1
140,001 -  150,000 -                     1
150,001 -160,000 1 -                      
180,001 - 190,000 1 -                      

$   $   
Base remuneration and superannuation 313,313 236,723
Annual leave and long service leave accruals 8,685 7,932
Other benefits 17,416 13,324
The total remuneration of senior officers 339,414 257,979

No senior officers are members of the Pension Scheme.

Note 33 Remuneration of auditor 2014 2013
$   $   

Remuneration paid or payable to the Auditor General in respect of the 
audit for the current financial year is as follows:

The total remuneration includes the superannuation expense incurred by the Authority in respect of senior officers other than senior officers reported as
members of the accountable authority.

+100 basis points

The number of senior officers other than senior officers reported as members of the Accountable Authority, whose total of fees, salaries and other benefits
for the financial year, fall within the following bands are:

+100 basis points

All financial assets and liabilities recognised in the Statement of Financial Position, whether they are carried at cost or fair value, are recognised at

amounts that represent a reasonable approximation of fair value unless otherwise stated in the applicable notes.

-100 basis points

The number of members of the accountable authority, whose total of fees, salaries, superannuation, non-monetary benefits and other benefits for the
financial year, fall within the following bands are:

-100 basis points

The following table represents a summary of the interest rate sensitivity of the Authority's financial assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period
on the profit for the period and equity for a 1% change in interest rates. It is assumed that the change in interest rates is held constant throughout the
reporting period.

ANIMAL RESOURCES AUTHORITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

Auditing the accounts, financial statements and performance indicators 49,300 48,000

Note 34 Related and affiliated bodies

Note 35 Supplementary financial information 2014 2013
$   $   

(a) Write offs
Debtor written off by the Board during the period 2,000 -                      

Debtor was written off by the Board as attempts to recover were futile and the debtor went into insolvency.

(a) Losses through theft, default and other causes
Petty cash written off 50 -                      

Note 36 Schedule of income and expenses for services

The Authority does not have any related or affiliated bodies.

The Authority has only one service to breed and supply SPF, genetically defined laboratory animals. Refer to Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Patrick Sharp
Animal Resources Authority
For the year ended 30 June 2014



Certification of Key Performance Indicators 
We hereby certify that the key performance indicators are based on proper records, 
are relevant and appropriate for assisting the users to assess the Animal Resources 
Authority’s performance, and fairly represent the Animal Resources Authority’s per-
formance for the financial year ended 30 June 2014.   
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Key Performance Indicators 
Outcomes 
The ARA facilitates improved human and animal health outcomes by providing high 
quality laboratory animals and technical advice to the biomedical research communi-
ty. The Authority’s services assist medical and veterinary biomedical research by 
minimizing disruptions from deleterious agents, genetic failure and/or unreliable ani-
mal availability. !
Improved health outcomes from research aligns with the Government Goal: 

“Results-Based Service Delivery – Greater focus on achieving results in key 
service delivery areas for the benefit of all Western Australians.” !

Efficiency Indicators 
The ARA measured production efficiency by comparing the year to year animal pro-
duction costs. Industry standards are unavailable for comparison. The animal pro-
duction costs have been detailed below. 

!
Production mice and rats (i.e., Goods and Services Sales), priced and sold individu-
ally, the cost per animal sold is the production area’s key efficiency indicator. !
Scientific Services (SS) maintains researchers’ animals on a fee-for-service basis, 
charged weekly.  The animal box maintenance cost is SS’s key efficiency indicator. !!

�  37Animal Resources Authority Annual Report FY 2013-2014

Service
Breed and supply SPF, genetically defined laboratory animals

Key 
Effectiveness 

Indicator 1

Health Monitoring

Key 
Effectiveness 

Indicator 3

Customer Service

Key 
Effectiveness 

Indicator 2

Genetic monitoring

Outcome
Facilitate scientific research by producing high quality genetically defined rats and 

mice free of deleterious agents for research, teaching, and testing

Key Efficiency 
Indicator 1

Cost per animal sold

Key Efficiency 
Indicator 2

Cost per box maintained



Mouse Maintenance 

*Less than a 5% increase !
Rat Maintenance 

*Less than a 5% increase !
The 2013-14 rat and mouse production costs were higher than 2012-13 and higher 
than the target cost. Major cost impacts were: 
• Higher Murdoch University lease accrual this FY. 
• Higher overhead costs.  
• More animals sold in 2013-14 and more inputs required.  
• Animal-related inputs experienced price increases from key vendors. 
• Low volume lines were maintained inefficiently. 
• Biologic asset inventory is aligned with customer demand to contain costs. 
• Reevaluating production cost inputs related to new hires and staff movement. !
Animal box maintenance involves standard husbandry practices plus several time 
consuming specialized processes ensuring complex breeding program effectiveness. 
The increased cost per box maintained results from an agreement with one customer 
whereby a lower price per box was negotiated many years ago; the resources con-
sumed likely impacts the production cost, too. Discussions to either increase rev-
enue or decrease the box counts occurred in the last quarter of FY 2013-14. A plan 
was developed and implemented. The matter is brought to the Board quarterly for 
their review and will be an ongoing agenda item until the Board determines other-
wise. These and other animal colonies were ramped down during FY 2013/14 and 
there was a lag as the new KPI input equilibrium is established; furthermore, mainte-
nance was impacted by the January 2013 price increase. !!!

Item Efficiency Indicator 2013-14 2012-13 2011-12

Production Breeding Number sold 200,610 192,648 196,331

A$/mouse sold A$ 25.52 A$ 23.76 A$ 25.35 

Target cost/mouse sold* A$ 24.95 A$ 26.62 A$ 22.20 

Custom Breeding # boxes maintained 148,447 156,542 202,666

A$/box maintained A$ 10.99 A$ 9.22   A$ 7.31   

Item Efficiency Indicator 2013-14 2012-13 2011-12

Production Breeding Number sold 20,699 21,082 21,976

A$/rat sold A$ 78.36 A$ 63.73 A$ 66.90 

Target cost/rat sold* A$ 66.92 A$ 70.25 A$ 64.19 

Custom Breeding # boxes maintained 456 368 412

A$/box maintained A$ 23.71 A$ 30.99 A$ 18.78 

�  38Animal Resources Authority Annual Report FY 2013-2014



Effectiveness Indicators 
Effectiveness measures the Authority’s ability to meet its major outcomes—supplying 
genetically sound animals free from research interfering organisms (deleterious 
agents). Meeting or exceeding effectiveness indicators is absolutely business critical; 
especially considering effectiveness indicators differ between customers. Laboratory 
animal specialists have recognized additional deleterious agents and these agents 
were incorporated into our health monitoring program accordingly. The following 
health monitoring and genetic testing results demonstrate that the ARA has a dynam-
ic, yet consistent and responsible program. !
The health monitoring program examines animals for deleterious viruses, bacteria, 
and parasites responsible for research altering clinical or subclinical disease. Inde-
pendent bodies, indicated below, perform all tests. 
• Rodent serology is performed by: 
‣ Cerberus Sciences, Adelaide, South Australia, 
‣ Murine Virus Monitoring Service, Institute of Medical and Veterinary Science, 

South Australia, and 
‣ IDEXX-RADIL, Columbia, Missouri, USA 

• Rodent bacteriology and mycology is performed by: 
‣  Vetpath Laboratory Services, Western Australia, 
‣ Cerberus Sciences, Adelaide, South Australia, and 
‣ IDEXX-RADIL, Columbia, Missouri, USA 

•  Rodent parasitology is performed by: 
‣  Cerberus Sciences, Adelaide, South Australia, 
‣  The Department of Parasitology, School of Veterinary and Biomedical Sci-

ences, Murdoch University, and 
‣  IDEXX-RADIL, Columbia, Missouri, USA 

• Rodent histopathology is performed by:  
‣ Comparative Pathology Consulting Pty Ltd 
‣ Cerberus Sciences, Adelaide, SA !

Rodent bacteriology targets a standard agent panel. The panel has undergone vari-
ous updates in recent years and this year’s panel reflects more agents and molecu-
lar, PCR-based testing to remove uncertainties seen with commensal agents (e.g., 
Staphylococcus aureus, Klebsiella oxytoca). Isolator-reared custom strain animals 
were rederived and subsequently screened by PCR to determine if some bacteria 
are passing through the rederivation process; they were not. The ARA is incorporat-
ing the new FELASA (Federation of Laboratory Animal Science Associations) Guide-
lines. The ARA’s website contains Health Monitoring Reports from the various animal 
housing areas; these reports are updated after each health screening. !

Health Surveillance 
Health surveillance identifies agents that may confound research results. All animal 
holding areas are regularly screened for murine pathogens via the methods high-
lighted in the table and description below. The combined 2013-2014 production and 
customer strains results are shown as number of positives from the total number of 
samples submitted for each pathogen group. The health surveillance program’s con-
tent, scope, and testing frequency meets or exceeds existing FELASA Guidelines. !
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Mouse and Rat Health Monitoring Results 

*The numerator in the ‘Actual’ table values indicates the positive results obtained 
while the denominator indicates the total number of tests performed.  
**Dermatophytes !
The ARA strives to maintain pathogen-free production units. The health monitoring 
panels include many agents; although it may be unnecessary to exclude all these 
organisms for each individual research purposes, our customers use these animal 
models for a continuum of research paradigms and we must supply animals accord-
ingly. This applies specifically to bacterial culture. Published health reports separate 
the agent list into ‘Organisms that are monitored and excluded’ (pathogens) and ‘Or-
ganisms that are monitored and NOT excluded’ (commensals) This helps customers 
to understand the biological significance of the results. Furthermore, the ARA’s vet-
erinary staff is available to, and did, consult with clients about these matters. !
Serology 
Serology detects an immune response (serum antibodies) to a given infectious 
agent; it is the ARA’s most commonly used diagnostic methodology. Serology results 
were historically ELISA-based. Currently, virtually all serologies are performed by the 
more sensitive and specific multiplex methodology. The ‘Serology’ heading in this 
year’s ‘Mouse and Rat Health Monitoring Results’ annual report table (above) result-
ed from combining the following headings found in previous years’ annual reports: 
‘Bacterial Serology’, ‘Viral Serology’, ‘MPV Serology’, and Encephalitozoon cuniculi. 
This year the ARA submitted about 83% more tests than FY 2012-13 while incurring 
significantly less expense. Starting in August 2013 the ARA submitted samples to the 
US-based IDEXX RADIL laboratory and we stopped pooling samples, which may 
yield a false negative result, and submitted individual samples. This resulted in in-
creased sample submissions. !
Positive serology results occurred in Production and Custom Strains areas to Mouse 
Norovirus (MNV) (Custom Strains mice) and Pneumocystis carinii (Production rats). 
Previously, the ARA performed individual ELISA tests rather than set panels, Custom 
Strains mice did not undergo MNV testing, because it was a known MNV positive 
area. The P. carinii serology test is new this fiscal year. !!!

Testing  
Method

2013-14 2012-13 2011-12

Actual* % Actual* % Actual* %

Serology 159/14,846 1.1 0/8,430 0 0/9,110 0

Bacterial culture 4/6,364 0.1 61/7,184 0.8 76/7,125 1.1

Pelt exam 0/248 0 0/301 0 0/280 0

Fecal exam 0/756 0 0/1,100 0 0/849 0

Fungal culture** 0/68 0 0/91 0 0/130 0

PCR 57/629 9.1 4/560 0.7 0/549 0
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Bacterial Culture 
A positive result indicates a microorganism was detected in the sample collected and 
submitted; no pathogens or commensal (‘organisms monitored but not excluded’) 
agents were identified. Due to problems inherent with bacterial culture, the ARA re-
placed bacterial culture of some agents (e.g., Klebsiella oxytoca, Staphylococcus au-
reus) with PCR; this change yielded more consistent results and required fewer bac-
terial cultures. !
Pelt Exam 
Various parasites (ectoparasites) may infest rat and mouse pelts; this include various 
mites, lice, and fleas. The ‘Pelt Exam’ heading in this year’s ‘Mouse and Rat Health 
Monitoring Results’ annual report table (above) was termed ‘Parasitology’ in previous 
years’ annual reports. The ARA performs the majority of these tests. Fewer tests 
were conducted this year due to the use of PCR and room consolidation. !
Fecal Exam 
Endoparasites, including intestinal protozoa, are detected by fecal examination. The 
‘Fecal Exam’ heading in this year’s ‘Mouse and Rat Health Monitoring Results’ an-
nual report table (above) was termed ‘Parasitology’ in previous years’ annual reports. 
The tests are performed by outside laboratories and the testing numbers while less 
than  FY 2012-13 approximate previous years testing. PCR replaced some fecal 
testing. !
Fungal Culture 
Fungal culture for dermatophytes or fungal agents affecting the skin. The ‘Fungal 
Culture’ heading in this year’s ‘Mouse and Rat Health Monitoring Results’ annual re-
port table (above) was termed ‘Skin Mycology’ in previous annual reports. Pneumo-
cystis spp. (also a fungus) testing is accomplished by either PCR or serology. !
PCR 
PCR is a powerful diagnostic tool used to detect fungi, endo-/ecto-parasites, bacte-
ria, and/or viruses. PCR directly detects an organism’s DNA. The ‘PCR’ heading in 
this year’s ‘Mouse and Rat Health Monitoring Results’ annual report table (above) 
resulted from combining the following headings found in previous years’ annual re-
ports: ‘Norovirus PCR’, ‘Helicobacter spp.’, and Pneumocystis carinii. It has proved 
to be a valuable, cost effective tool to detect S. aureus and K. oxytoca. Another pow-
erful component of PCR-based testing is that one test submission can ‘pool’ up to 
ten samples without a loss of sensitivity or specificity. !
Although the number of PCR tests conducted approximates previous year’s, fewer 
Helicobacter tests were submitted (due to pooling samples) in FY 2013-14 and more 
tests for endo-/ecto-parasites, bacteria (e.g., S. aureus, K. oxytoca), and a newly 
identified virus (e.g., Boone cardiovirus) were submitted. All tests for Boone car-
diovirus of rats were negative. !
Postmortem and Histopathology 
In addition to the routine and extensive health monitoring program discussed above, 
postmortem and histopathology were performed on animals with observed illness 
and those animals used in the health monitoring program. Postmortem examination 
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supports and complements the health monitoring program. In FY 2013-14, 115 mice 
and rats underwent postmortem examination. No diseases or significant conditions 
were identified, other than the reported health monitoring program findings.  !
In summary, the extensive health monitoring indicates the ARA has achieved the de-
sired outcome related to health and continues to improve animal health standards as 
new agents and tests are identified. !

Genetic Monitoring 
ARA bred animals consist of either stocks or strains. A strain is maintained through 
brother x sister mating (inbreeding) to obtain 98.7% genetic homogeneity after 20 
generations; each animal is virtually identical serving as a valuable scientific tool. 
Many ARA maintained strains are well beyond 20 generations. Conversely, stock an-
imals are highly outbred and genetic heterogeneity is valued. Therefore, under-
standably, genetic purity is another essential objective that must meet the biomedical 
research community’s exacting standards. Rat and mouse strains carrying a given 
genotype provide ‘models’ of human conditions to assist researchers in characteriz-
ing a disease’s pathophysiology and develop new treatments. These models include 
high blood pressure, diabetes, and cancer. !
The ARA’s inbred rat and mouse strains are monitored for genetic contamination, 
genetic drift, or gene mutations to ensure a given line’s effectiveness as a research 
model was not compromised. Genetic changes usually cannot be identified visually, 
consequently the significance of the two distinct monitoring regimes comprising the 
ARA’s genetic testing program. The first monitoring regime assesses the background 
line’s pedigree and pooled production colonies in semiannual testing. Further pedi-
gree colony analysis distinguishes between those strains on the same genetic back-
ground by gene of interest analysis. This constitutes the second monitoring regime 
and is an expansion of the testing capabilities to cater for specific mutations that 
uniquely define strains and their use. !
Mice 
In November 2013 and May 2014, 146 production and 178 retired pedigree mouse 
tissue samples, respectively, were sampled, submitted, and evaluated by the Aus-
tralian Genome Research Facility Ltd by single nucleotide polymorphism (SNP) 
marker analysis (19 markers). SNP technology is a sensitive molecular diagnostic 
technique detecting DNA sequence differences, that is, potential genetic contamina-
tion. No genetic contamination was identified. !
Rats 
In November 2013 and May 2014, 55 production (representing 7 inbred and 2 out-
bred lines) and 57 retired pedigree (representing 8 strains) samples were tested by 
the Evolutionary Biology Unit, Museum of South Australia, by allozyme electrophore-
sis (16 markers). No genetic contamination was detected. !

Customer Survey 
There was a 28% response rate from 458 customers answering the same basic 
questions as previous years. Although the response rate was half of the previous 
year, the survey was distributed to >2x the number of customers (458), with >1.5x 
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the number of responses (130). We believe this year’s survey reached more ‘front-
line customers’ (e.g., researchers). The survey was disseminated by 'Survey Mon-
key’ with questions worded to focus on ARA activities over the preceding year.  !

Figure 1. Average customer response scores by survey question category. 

!  !
Figure 2. Percentage of customer responses of 4 or greater. 

!  !
Results Commentary 
The FY 2013-14 customer survey results compare favorably to previous financial 
years (Figures 1 and 2; Customer Survey Data Summary Table). Consistency be-
tween financial years reflects the Authority's commitment to continuous improvement 
(Figure 1) in addition to providing consistent customer services and products (Figure 
2). The ARA’s continued high transport and customer service scores are relevant 
considering most sales are to Eastern states and customer service is a strong com-
ponent of the overall high-quality products. Transportation and price scores fell 
slightly in this year’s survey reflecting these impacts on the customer. The ARA is 
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evaluating factors impacting transportation cost and animal price, although these in-
creases reflect higher inputs paid by the ARA.  !
Customer survey data summary 

!
In addition to the annual customer survey, the ARA constantly monitors customer 
concerns and feedback as part of the quality program associated with the Centre's 
ISO:9001 2008 accreditation. The customer concern monitoring methodology en-
sures a prompt response and enables ongoing improvement of the ARA’s activities.!!

Independent Audits 
Internal Audit 
The 2014 review of the ARC’s accounting and financial controls of orders, sales in-
voicing, receipting, and debt collection was conducted by an independent auditor as 
part of a three-year rotational plan for evaluating internal controls of financial proce-
dures. There were no significant, no moderate, and three minor findings; all but one 
finding was quickly addressed. !
AS/NZS ISO 9001:2008 
The Animal Resources Authority maintains AS/NZS ISO 9001:2008 certification. To 
maintain this accreditation the ARC audits all operating procedures at least annually, 
is subject to annual surveillance audits, and a triennial Certification audit by SGS In-
ternational Certification Services Pty Ltd. The successful surveillance audit this year 
confirmed the Animal Resources Authority’s continued registration under the SGS 
ICS Quality Assured Firm Scheme. !
There was a single, minor finding from the surveillance audit related to conducting an 
internal audit pertaining to vendors and, in turn, implementing the associated quality 
management system. The finding resulted in the discussion and review of the ap-
plicable Standard Operating Procedure and Work Instruction. !
External Triennial Review 
Under the Australian Code (7th edition, 2004) the ARC’s AEC should undergo an 
ETR as part of the self-regulatory process. This year’s ETR Team consisted of three 
members, all external to the ARC and none expressing a conflict of interest. The 
ETR Team spent two days and examined documents; inspected all animal holding 
facilities; and interviewed executive, managerial, technical staff, one external re-
searcher, and all AEC members.  

Survey Area
Average Score % Responses ≥ 4

2014 2013 2012 2011 2014 2013 2012 2011

Quality 4.3 4.3 4.3 4.5 86 87 88 88

Transport 4.4 4.5 4.5 4.6 92 92 96 95

Range 4.2 4.2 4.3 4.3 85 88 87 76

Customer Service 4.5 4.4 4.5 4.6 90 92 94 91

Price 4.1 4.2 4.1 4.2 82 87 84 83
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The Team concluded that the AEC fulfills its Code responsibilities, the AEC meets its 
responsibilities set out in the AEC Terms of Reference, and the AEC operates con-
sistent with the AEC Mode of Operation. !
The Team’s 14 recommendations are under review by the CEO and the AEC: 
• Make provision in the AEC Mode of Operation for a Deputy Chair of the AEC, 

with the Mode of Operation specifying the circumstances and means of appoint-
ment. 

• Keep under review the feasibility and opportunity to have alternate members as a 
risk management measure and as a means to assist succession planning. 

• Review the induction package for new AEC members with a view to providing 
additional information and web site addresses at which information is available. 

• Ensure that external AEC members have access to the current Standard Operat-
ing Procedures and Work Instructions. 

• Consider including in the Application for Use, a requirement for the applicant to 
attach to the application, all Standard Operating Procedures to be used in the 
project. 

• Consider including in the Application for Use, a section in which the applicant 
provides, in relation to each procedure specified in the application, the evidence 
that each person who will carry out that procedure has the required registered 
competency to carry out that procedure. 

• Consider including in section 8 of the Application for Use, a requirement for the 
applicant to specify the type of experimental design to be used, and the statistical 
tests to be used. 

• Consider including in the Application for Use, a section that requires the applicant 
to designate the level of pain and/or level of intervention animals are expected to 
experience in the use of the animals, noting that a multi-choice tick box in the ap-
plication could provide data that aligns with the data the ARC provides in its an-
nual report to the regulator. 

• Develop or further refine written response plans for a response to an unexpected 
adverse event in the use of animals with the possibility of each plan including: 
‣ criteria to categorise events or cases from major to minor; and 
‣ a flow chart of responsibilities and actions, with the response being a step 

process such as: 
- the immediate reporting of the event by the quickest possible means; 
- a follow up written situation report within a reasonable time frame such as 

24 hours; 
- on-going status reports; 
-  a final report of the outcome of the response and the investigation into the 

cause of the event. 
• Examine the opportunity for selected researchers to attend, by invitation, parts of 

a meeting of the AEC that would not conflict with privacy or confidentiality of other 
researchers or the ARC. 

• Continue examining opportunities for selected animal breeding and production 
managers, by invitation, to attend a meeting to the AEC. 

• Develop or further refine written response plans for a suspected or alleged non-
compliance with AEC guidelines or approvals, or the Code, with the plans includ-
ing a flow chart of responsibilities and actions. 
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• Ensure that all staff and researchers who have contact with animals, have com-
pleted or complete a training and assessment module on the provisions of the 
Code. 

• Note that the Code provides for the AEC to report and recommend on non-com-
pliance only to the institution, that the relevant regulations recognise only the li-
censee as the entity to report to the regulator, and that it is necessary to amend 
the AEC Mode of Operation in relation to reporting non-compliance to make it 
consistent with the Code and the regulations. !

Ministerial Directives 
No Ministerial Directives were received during FY 2013-14. !

Other Financial Disclosures 
Pricing Policies of Services Provided 
The Authority has discretion over goods and services pricing rendered with the Min-
ister's approval. The ARA’s goods and services charges are on a full or partial cost 
recovery. The objective is to provide value via a high quality product/service at the 
lowest cost while maintaining the ARA’s ability to be sustainable and self-funding. !
Major Capital Projects 
No major capital projects were carried out in 2013-14. !
Employment and Industrial Relations 

*Staff on 2-year contracts associated with traineeships. !
Staff Development 
The ARA’s staff development commitment is critical to our Quality System, exceeding 
our customer expectations in a competitive and changing environment, and sustain-
ing a stable, skilled, and committed workforce. !
All new and existing production employees are offered Certificate III level, Animal 
Technology training. The Registered Training Organisation status continues to allow 
the Authority to offer Traineeships targeting potential staff 25 years and younger 
when new staff appointments are required. One staff members completed the Cer-
tificate III, Animal Technology training during FY 2013-14. !
Staff career development is actively supported. 7 staff members pursued the Front-
line Management program in FY 2013-14. This on site program has been successful 
in retaining valued employees. !

Staff Profile 2014 2013

Full-time permanent 40 37

Full-time contract* 18 18

Part-time permanent 5.54 6.76

Part-time contract 1 0

Total 64.54 61.76
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Governance Disclosures 
Contracts and Insurance Premiums 

Senior Officer Contracts 
At the reporting date, other than normal employment service contracts, no Board 
members or Senior Officers, or firms of which Members or Senior Officers are mem-
bers, or entities in which Members or Senior Officers have substantial interests, had 
any interests in existing or proposed contracts with the ARA and Senior Officers. !
Insurance Premiums Paid to Indemnify Board Members 
An insurance policy indemnifies Board members against any liability incurred under 
the Statutory Corporations (Liability of Directors) Act 1996 §13 or 14. The insurance 
premium for FY 2013-14 was A$ 3,358. !
Board and Committee Remuneration: Animal Resources Authority Board 

! !

Position Name Term Gross Payment

Chair Anthony Tate 10/2013-9/2016 A$ 1,380.00               

Deputy Chair Campbell Thomson 10/2012-9/2015 A$ 0                           

Member Leslie Chalmers 10/2013-9/2016 A$ 1,200.00               

Member Jennet Harvey 10/2012-9/2015 A$ 1,200.00               

Member David Morrison 6/2013-6/2016 A$ 0.00                      

Member Elizabeth Rakoczy 10/2013-9/2016 A$ 600.00                  

Member Michael Robins 10/2012-9/2015 A$ 0.00                      

Member Charlie Thorn 11/2012-11/2015 A$ 0.00                      
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Legislative and Government Compliance 
Public Sector Management Act § 31(1) 
In the administration of the Animal Resources Authority, I have complied with the 
Public Sector standards in Human Resource Management, the Western Australian 
Public Sector Code of Ethics, and our Code of Conduct. I have maintained proce-
dures ensuring such compliance and conducted appropriate internal assessments to 
satisfy myself that the previous statement is correct. !
The applications made for breach of standards review and the corresponding out-
comes for the reporting period are: 
• Number lodged: 4 
• Breaches found, including details of multiple breaches per application: 3 
• Number still under review: 2 !

!!!
Electoral Act 1907; Section 175ZE 
In compliance with the Electoral Act 1907 §175ZE, the ARA reports financial year 
expenditures incurred related to advertising agencies, market research organiza-
tions, polling organizations, direct mail organizations and media advertising organi-
zations. !
FY 2013-14 Advertising agency expenditures totaled A$ 4,461. Staff recruitment ad-
vertising with Seek Ltd. cost A$ 3,199 and A$ 1,262 went towards Media Advertising. 
No monies went towards Market Research, Polling, or Direct Mail. !!

Patrick Sharp 
Chief Executive Officer 

August 13, 2014
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Public Sector Standards and Ethical Codes 2013-14 

!
Disability Access and Inclusion Plan Outcomes 
The ARC is exempt from producing a Disability Access and Inclusion Plan. The ARA 
products and services are accessible to all customers and potential customers via 
our website, email, or telephone. !
Record Keeping Plans (RKP) 
The ARA is committed to the State Records Commission’s (SRC) sound record 
keeping practices. In relation to SRC Standard 2, Principle 6 the Authority reports: 
• The revised RKP 2010 has been approved by the SRC. 
• All new employees undergo an intensive induction program which includes record 

keeping requirements, and roles and responsibilities of all staff. 
• The Animal Technology Certificate III requirements include the importance of 

record keeping as they relate to the Authority's activities. 
• Every employee receives the Authority's Employee Handbook outlining the 

Records Management policy and procedures. 
• Procedures relating to record keeping are reviewed annually as part of the quality 

system management. !

Compliance Issues
Significant Action Taken to 

Monitor and Ensure 
Compliance

Public Sector Standards 
Nil breach claims

• The Employee Handbook includes-
Standards information 

•  New employee induction includes a 
Public Sector Standards discussion. 

• Quality System Work Instructions relat-
ing to Public Sector Standards were 
reviewed and amended as appropriate.

WA Code of Ethics 
Nil non-compliance reports

• Code of Ethics information is included 
in new employees induction materials. 

•  New employee induction includes a 
WA Code of Ethics discussion. 

• The ARA’s Code of Conduct is based 
on the WA Code of Ethics

Agency Code of Conduct 
Three Code of Conduct breaches

• A disciplinary matter concluded one 
breach; it reverted to a resignation due 
to Unfair Work being involved. Two 
breaches are under review regarding 
staff Code of Conduct. 

•  The Employee Handbook includes the 
ARA’s Code of Conduct information. 

• The Authority’s Code is explained to all 
new employees at their induction. 

•  The ARA’s Code of Business Conduct 
will be reviewed in 2013.
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Public Interest Disclosure Act 2003; §23(1)(f) 
In compliance with the Act, the ARA appointed a Public Interest Disclosure Officer 
and published internal guidelines and procedures facilitating the Public Interest Dis-
closure process while protecting and supporting those who make such disclosures. !
The OPSSC DVD, SPEAKING OUT—A Guide to Making a Public Interest Disclosure 
is shown to all staff. All new employees view and discuss the issues during induction. !
Freedom of Information Statement 
The ARA's mission, including administered legislation details and the agency's struc-
ture, is in this report’s ‘Overview’ section. The ARA’s decisions affect the ARC’s func-
tion, but have no direct public effect. Authority decisions relate to the type/number of 
animals produced and the means by which funds are used. In most circumstances 
the decision making authority rests with the CEO; the Board ratifies these decisions. 
ARA activity information requests should be directed to the CEO. !
Substantive Equality 
The ARC is not required to report on Substantive Equality. !
Occupational Safety and Health 
The ARA is committed to occupational safety and health (OSH) and injury manage-
ment and has widely communicated policies fostering a strong workplace safety cul-
ture. The ARA's management team maintains a very proactive injury management 
approach to reduce injury-related lost time and achieve improved outcomes for in-
jured employees. !
The OSH Committee includes employee and senior management representatives.  It 
meets at least every three months to discuss and resolve OSH matters. The Com-
mittee’s employee representatives consult with peers and raise OSH issues identi-
fied. Managers and staff conduct work area safety assessments and seek staff feed-
back on OSH issues or risks. These issues or risks are logged, ranked, and acted 
upon as part of the ARA’s OSH system. Staff input has effectively reduced workplace 
risks and hazards; most notably in manual handling task removal. We have also ap-
pointed two safety representatives on behalf of ARA and they will be continuing work 
with the OSH Sub Committee members and OSH Committee. !
The OSH procedures were reviewed annually, as part of the quality system man-
agement. See Independent Audits section. OSH audits each facility area at least 
quarterly, more often if required. The OSH management system was last assessed 
in 2009 and there were 20 agreed actions, 100% of which were completed. 
RiskCover audited the ARA’s Injury Management Policy and Procedures and 
deemed them compliant with the Workers Compensation and Injury Management Act 
(1981) injury management requirements. The return to work program was developed 
and implemented as an effective tool for managing the return to work process. !!
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Animal Resources Authority's OSH Annual Performance 

!

Measure
Actual Results Results Against Target

2011-12 2013-14 Target Comment

Fatalities 0 0 0

Lost time injury (LTI)/disease 
incidence rate 3.3 3 2.5

LTI and/or disease severity rate 0 4 0

Injured worker (%) 2% 4% 0

Injured workers returning to work 
within 13 weeks (%) 50% 60% 100%

Injured workers returning to work 
within 26 weeks (%) 100% 80% 100%

Managers trained in OSH and injury 
management responsibilities (%) 80% 80% 80%
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Estimated Financial Position Statement 
As of June 30, 2015 

(Unaudited) 
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ANIMAL RESOURCES AUTHORITY

ESTIMATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 30 June 2015

(Unaudited)

2014
A$

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,846,069
Inventories 64,940
Biological assets 3,120,660
Receivables 206,908
Total Current Assets 5,238,577

Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 3,898,835
Intangible assets 26,967
Total Non-Current Assets 3,925,802

TOTAL ASSETS 9,164,379

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables 614,795
Provisions 639,216
Total Current Liabilities 1,254,011

Non-Current Liabilities
Provisions 138,969
Total Non-Current Liabilities 138,969

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,392,980

NET ASSETS 7,771,399

EQUITY
Reserves 1,690,936
Retained earnings 6,080,463

TOTAL EQUITY 7,771,399



Estimated Comprehensive Income Statement 
As of June 30, 2015 

(Unaudited) 

!
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2015
A$

INCOME
Revenue
Sales 7,894,227
Provision of services 1,108,022
Interest revenue 29,121
Other revenue 0

Gains
Net change in fair value of biological assets 283,696

TOTAL INCOME 9,315,066

EXPENSES
Cost of sales and services 7,648,925
Employee benefits expense 797,257
Depreciation and amortisation expense 89,041
Accommodation expense 123,240
Supplies and services 498,773
Other expenses 480,620
TOTAL EXPENSES 9,637,856

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD (322,790)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Changes in asset revaluation surplus -
Gains/losses recognised directly in equity -
Total other comprehensive income 0

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD (322,790)


